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Splendour of Rainforests by Ngiam Kiah Seng
Ink and Colour on Paper

Ngiam Kiah Seng received the Platinum Award in the 2010 UOB Painting Of The Year Competition for this
painting. It is the design inspiration behind this year’s Annual Report.

Ngiam used a yin-yang stroke technique to represent the interconnectedness and interdependence of
the stability of Singapore’s financial system to the nation’s growth and development through the idea of
rainforests. The rainforest trees symbolise longevity, synonymous with UOB’s long term focus on how it
manages and operates its businesses across the region.

Ngiam’s piece is now one of the works in the UOB Art Collection. The collection began in the 1970s as a

way to support the local art scene in Singapore and has grown to include more than 1,700 pieces from
around the region. Many of these pieces are on display at the Group’s offices worldwide.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LTD.
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Important Notice

The Board of Directors of the Bank assures that the
information presented in this report is true, accurate and
complete. This report was passed at the Board of Directors
Meeting held on 21 March 2013.

The financial statements of the Bank for Year 2012
were audited by Ernst and Young Hua Ming Shanghai
Office in accordance with the China Certificated Public
Accountants’ Independent Auditing Standards, and
have obtained standard auditors’ reports without any
reserved opinions.

Board of Directors, United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

21 March 2013

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LTD. 3
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About United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB (China)) is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the United Overseas Bank
Limited (UOB), a leading bank in Asia. UOB (China) was
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China on 18
December 2007 with a registered capital of RMB 3 billion.

Headquartered in Shanghai, UOB (China) commenced
business on 2 January 2008. Our growth in China has
been based on a long-term strategic focus which has seen
us increase our presence to more than 10 branches and
sub-branches in major cities in China.

UOB has more than 25 years’ experience in China. Our
first representative office was set up in Beijing in 1984.
In 2006, We were also the first bank from Southeast
Asia authorised to settle capital accounts in Shanghai.
UOB (China) received a retail Renminbi (RMB) licence
and Shanghai Gold Exchange trading membership
in 2008 and 2011 respectively. In 2012, UOB (China)
received a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors
(QDII) licence, and was one of an initial batch of 20
banks to participate in trading bullion via the Shanghai
Gold Exchange's newly-launched interbank platform.
These advances extended further our business offerings
to customers operating in China.

UOB (China) is triple A rated for comprehensive financial
credibility and stable for financial strength outlook by
China Chengxin International Credit Rating Co., Ltd.
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About United Overseas Bank Limited

United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in
Asia with a global network of more than 500 offices in 19
countries and territories in Asia Pacific, Western Europe
and North America. Since its incorporation in 1935, UOB
has grown through a series of strategic acquisitions and
organic growth. Today, it operates in Asia through its
branches and representative offices as well as banking
subsidiaries in China, Indonesia, Malaysia, the Philippines,
Singapore and Thailand.

UOB provides a wide range of financial services including
personal financial services, wealth management, private
banking, commercial and corporate banking, transaction
banking, investment banking, corporate finance, capital
market activities, treasury services, futures broking,
asset management, venture capital management and
insurance. UOB also has diversified interests in travel and
property management.

In Singapore, UOB is a market leader in the credit and
debit cards business, and the private residential home
loans business. It is also a key player in loans to small
and medium enterprises. Its fund management arm, UOB
Asset Management, is one of Singapore’s most awarded
fund managers.

UOB is rated among the world’s top banks, with a rating
of Aal by Moody’s and AA- by Standard and Poor’s and
Fitch respectively.

UOB also plays an active role in the community, focusing
its corporate responsibility efforts on the arts, promoting
education and helping children. For three decades
UOB has organised the prestigious UOB Painting Of
The Year Competition and Exhibition. In recognition of
its contributions to the arts, UOB has been conferred
the National Arts Council’s Distinguished Patron of
the Arts Award for the seventh consecutive year. UOB
also encourages its employees across the region to be
involved in its corporate responsibility programme through
regular volunteer activities. This includes the annual UOB
Heartbeat Run which is held in Singapore, Malaysia,
Indonesia, Thailand and mainland China.

For more information about UOB, please visit
www.uobgroup.com.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LTD. 5
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2012 2011 (D::;Z:a:;
ZE R R Operating result RMB'000 %
Net interest income 625,655 461,559 35.6
Net fee and commission income 56,739 34,178 66.0
Total operating income 870,603 634,500 37.2
Total operating expenses 563,665 498,261 138.1
Impairment charges 24,716 5,379 359.5
Operating profit 282,221 130,859 115.7
Profit before tax 286,788 123,205 132.8
Net profit after tax 214,588 94,509 1271
& 7= fa{& Balance sheet RMB'000 %
Total assets 34,583,262 35,269,369 (2.0)
Customer loans, net 14,916,638 13,422,820 1.1
Total liabilities 30,806,847 31,711,663 (2.9)
Customer deposits 23,944,690 21,105,907 13.5
Shareholders' equity 3,776,415 3,557,706 6.1
1 & $5#%% Financial indicators % % %
Return on average ordinary shareholders' equity 5.8 2.7 3.1
Return on average total assets 0.6 0.3 0.3
Expenses/income ratio 64.7 78.5 (13.8)
Net fee and commission income/total operating income 6.5 54 1.1
Net interest margin 2.5 2.3 0.2
Loans-to-Deposits ratio 64.3 64.9 (0.6)
Non-performing loan ratio 0.7 0.6 0.1
Non-performing loan coverage 277.8 310.7 (32.9)

Capital adequacy ratio
Tier 1 CAR 22.3 24.3 (2.0)
Total CAR 23.5 25.5 (2.0)

6 RERT (HE ) FRAF
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Chairman’s Statement

2012 Review

The underlying issues in the global environment persisted over the
last 12 months but as expected, Asia stayed resilient amid a global
slowdown. After a decade of high growth, Chinese economic
growth moderated in 2012 to 7.8 per cent year-on-year (y-o-y).
Economic restructuring continued through the urbanisation of the
lower-tiered cities and a measured stimulus programme to boost
domestic consumption.

UOB (China) Performance and Achievements

At UOB (China), we are committed to delivering disciplined growth.
This commitment is the principle by which all management decisions
are taken and this is reflected in our 2012 performance. Operating
profit grew 115.6 per cent to Renminbi (RMB) 282.2 million and
net profit after tax rose 127.1 per cent to RMB 214.6 million. Our
balance sheet remains solid, our funding more diversified and our
relationship with customers deeper.

Customer loans expanded 12.7 per cent y-o-y to RMB 15.1 billion,
while total deposits increased 13.3 per cent y-o0-y to RMB 23.9 billion.
As a result, our loans-to-deposits ratio decreased from 64.9 per
cent to 64.3 per cent. We will continue to strengthen our customer
franchise while ensuring funding stability.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LTD. 7
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Improving customers’ experience through our network
and channels

UOB Group’s investment in building an integrated regional
network to provide our customers with a seamless and consistent
experience across the region is well on track. For UOB (China),
the investment resulted in significant progress in our business
network expansion programme and the introduction of product
and service enhancements.

In 2012 we continued to focus on building our retail and commercial
banking businesses through products and services tailored to
meet the needs of our Chinese customers. With the opening of the
Hangzhou branch in April 2012, we strengthened our presence in
the Yangtze River delta and our service of affluent consumers and
private and state-owned enterprises. To provide customers with a
better and more convenient banking experience, we also upgraded
our branches in Beijing, Tianjin and Guangzhou, and relocated our
Shenzhen office.

During the year we enhanced our e-service channels by launching
UOB Personal Internet Banking. We upgraded our ATMs to
accept China UnionPay-issued integrated chip cards. We also
commenced inter-bank discounting of bankers acceptance drafts
and the trading of precious metals and made improvements to our
customer service hotline. All these services continued to deliver on
our promise to provide world-class customer service while ensuring
greater efficiency across our business.

Helping customers seize intra-regional trade opportunities
The rise in intra-regional trade is estimated to account for almost
half of all trade in Asia'. Chinese enterprises are playing a role in this
growth with an increasing number looking to expand into the region
to fuel their growth. For such businesses, UOB (China) has set up
a dedicated regional China Desk to support Chinese companies
going abroad. This team works with colleagues in our Singapore
Foreign Direct Investment Advisory Unit to help our customers
establish operations in Southeast Asia.

In November 2012, UOB was the first bank in Southeast Asia to
sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with China Council
for the Promotion of International Trade (CCPIT) for promoting inter-
regional trade and investment. Under the MOU, UOB will work with
CCPIT to help Chinese companies seize market opportunities in
Southeast Asia through cross-border banking solutions including
trade financing, loans, investments and deposits. CCPIT will also
help to support the expansion plans of UOB’s commercial and
corporate banking customers into China.

Our efforts to help clients seize these cross-border opportunities

! The Rise of Intra-Regional Trade 2012.11.28

8 RERT (HE ) FRAF

' UOB Insights Report: The Rise of Intra-Regional Trade (28 November 2012)
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Chairman’s Statement

helped us earn the “2012 Top 10 Successful ASEAN's Enterprises
Entering into China" title from the China-ASEAN Business Council.

Training and retaining talent

Banking is ultimately a people and relationship business. The key
to our continued success is a strong talent pool. By the end of
2012, UOB (China) had more than 1,000 employees supporting our
business and customers.

To develop our people to their full potential, UOB is committed to
investing in skills development and to creating opportunities for our
people to grow. There is a Chinese saying that it takes 10 years
to cultivate a tree, 100 years to grow a person. Nurturing talent
requires patience and commitment for the long term.

This year, we saw our first cohort of young talents complete the
15-month long Management Associates Programme. These young
talents selected from top universities in Shanghai, Beijing, Chengdu
and Xiamen have now started their career within the Bank.

2013 Outlook

We expect that 2013 will be a year of slower global growth due
to continued uncertainty in the West. However, we expect Asia to
stay resilient barring major shocks from the West. Asia’s long-term
prospects are strong, backed by increasing intra-regional business
and its rising middle class.

Within Asia, Southeast Asia is expected to remain a bright spot, with
its consistent growth rate and favourable demographics. Last year
China-ASEAN trade volume reached a record high of US$400 bilion?
and we see the future of bilateral cooperation between China and
ASEAN as continuing to strengthen.

To continue to be successful in the years ahead, we will focus
on delivering growth with stability and on ensuring that we are
delivering the right products and solutions to our customers.
This involves discipline in pursuing business and customers with
the right target risk-return profile, setting a balance risk-reward
performance system and culture, and equipping our people with
the skills and knowledge to do what is right for our customers.
We are confident that our business philosophy and focus on
long-term sustainable profits will ensure we are well-positioned
for future growth.

“ 2012
BHRMBEAS
1000
2012
RBE 2013
2 - 2012

? China-ASEAN Business Council 2012 data

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LTD. 9
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Acknowledgement

| would like to express our deep appreciation to the Board of
Directors for their wise counsel during the past year. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to thank the Management and all staff for
their commitment and hard work. To our customers, | look forward
to your continued support as we seek to serve you better.

Wee Ee Cheong
Chairman
April 2013
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Corporate Information

Registered Name

United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
Legal Representative

Wee Ee Cheong

Registered Office

Unit 105, 2F, 3F,111 Dongyuan Road Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: uobchina.com.cn

Date of Incorporation

18 December 2007

Registration Authority
Shanghai Administration of Industry and Commerce

Registered Business Licence Number
310000400553992

Paid Up Share Capital
RMB 3,000,000,000

Shareholder (Founder)
United Overseas Bank Limited

Type of Company
Limited Company (Wholly Foreign-owned)

Tax Registration Number
310043669414723

Supervisor
Wee Cho Yaw

Board of Directors

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)

Tan Kian Huat (President and CEQ)
Francis Lee Chin Yong

Christine Ip

Cham Tao Soon

Zeng Zhi Jie

Executive Committee

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)

Tan Kian Huat

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Christine Ip

Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)

Wee Ee Cheong

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Zeng Zhi Jie

Audit Committee

Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)
Francis Lee Chin Yong

Christine Ip

Zeng Zhi Jie

Connected Transaction Control Committee
Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman)

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Cham Tao Soon

William Chong Kim Khong

Risk Management Committee
Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman)

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Christine Ip

Cham Tao Soon

Auditors
Ernst and Young Hua Ming (Shanghai Branch)
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Wee Cho Yaw
Supervisor

Age 84. A banker with more than 50 years’ experience, Dr. Wee
has been the Supervisor of UOB (China) since 2007.

Dr. Wee joined the Board of UOB in 1958, and was appointed
Managing Director of UOB in 1960. He has been the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of UOB since 1974. He
relinquished his CEO position in 2007.

Dr. Wee is the Chairman of UOB subsidiaries, Far Eastern Bank,
United Overseas Insurance, United Overseas Bank (Malaysia)
and United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company, and President
Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia. He is the Chairman of
United International Securities, Haw Par Corporation, UOL Group,
Pan Pacific Hotels Group, United Industrial Corporation, and
Singapore Land and its subsidiary, Marina Centre Holdings. He is
also the Chairman of the Wee Foundation.

Dr. Wee was conferred the Businessman of the Year award twice
at the Singapore Business Awards in 2001 and 1990. In 2006,
he received the inaugural Credit Suisse-Ernst & Young Lifetime
Achievement Award for his outstanding achievements in the
Singapore business community. In 2009, he was conferred the
Lifetime Achievement Award by The Asian Banker. Dr. Wee is the
Pro-Chancellor of Nanyang Technological University and Honorary
President of the Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce &
Industry, Singapore Federation of Chinese Clan Associations and
Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan. He was conferred an Honorary
Doctor of Letters by National University of Singapore in 2008.

Dr. Wee was also conferred the Distinguished Service Order,
Singapore’s highest National Day Awards in 2011, for his
outstanding contributions in community work. He was appointed
Honorary Adviser of China Overseas Exchange Association in 2008.
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Wee Ee Cheong

Chairman

Age 60. Mr. Wee was appointed to the Board on 17 September 2007
as the Chairman. He is also the Chairman of the Bank’s Executive
Committee and a member of the Nominating and Remuneration
Committee.

A career banker, Mr. Wee joined United Overseas Bank (UOB) in
1979, and has extensive experience handling various functions
across the Bank. He served as Deputy Chairman and President
of the Bank from 2000 to April 2007 before being appointed as
CEO on 27 April 2007. He is a member of the UOB Executive
and Board Risk Management Committees.

He also holds directorships in several UOB subsidiaries and
affiliates, including Far Eastern Bank, United Overseas Insurance,
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia), United Overseas Bank (Thai)
Public Company and United International Securities. He is the Vice
President Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

Mr. Wee is actively engaged in regional business development
through his participation in key industry bodies. He serves as
a council member of The Association of Banks in Singapore
and as a director of The Institute of Banking and Finance and
chairs the Financial Industry Competency Standards (FICS)
Steering Committee. He is a member of the Board of Governors
of Singapore-China Foundation, Visa APCEMEA Senior Client
Council and Advisory Board of INSEAD East Asia Council and
International Council.

He is a director of the Wee Foundation, as well as the patron of the
Nanyang Academy of Fine Arts. Mr. Wee is an honorary council
member of the Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce and
Industry. He had previously served as Deputy Chairman of the
Housing and Development Board, and as a director of the Port of
Singapore Authority, UOL Group and Pan Pacific Hotels Group.

He holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration) and a

Master of Arts (Applied Economics) from The American University,
Washington, DC.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LTD. 13
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Tan Kian Huat

President and Chief Executive Officer

Age 55. Mr. Tan was appointed to the Board on 6 June 2008
as an Executive Director. He is also a member of the Bank’s
Executive Committee.

Mr. Tan has been the President and CEO of UOB (China) since
6 May 2008. Prior to his current appointment, he was a Senior
Vice President in United Overseas Bank (Malaysia).

In his 29 years in the banking industry, he has served as a Credit
Officer, Head of Credit, Branch Manager, Regional Manager and
Head of Business Banking.

Mr. Tan holds a Bachelor of Science (Mechanical Engineering,
Hons) from the University of Leeds, UK, and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Bradford, UK.
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Francis Lee Chin Yong

Age 59. Mr. Lee was appointed to the Board on 27 December 2007
as a non-executive director. He is also a member of the Bank’s
Executive, Nominating and Remuneration, Audit, Connected
Transaction Control and Risk Management Committees.

Mr. Lee is a Managing Director and Head of Group Retail at
United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB). He joined UOB in 1980.
He leads the UOB Group’s retail businesses for consumers
and small business customers. Prior to his appointment in
Singapore in 2003, he was the Chief Executive Officer of United
Overseas Bank (Malaysia). Between 2003 and 2008, Mr. Lee
was the Head of International and spearheaded the Group’s
expansion in the region. He was also responsible for the Bank’s
consumer banking business in Singapore and the region.

Mr. Lee is a director of several UOB subsidiaries and affiliates,
including United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd, United
Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited, UOB Property
Investments Private Limited, UOB International Investment Pte
Ltd, UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited, Uni.Asia Capital Sdn Bhd,
Uni.Asia Life Assurance Bhd, President Hotel Sdn Bhd, HPL
Properties (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, Grand Elite Sdn Bhd, Grand
Elite (Penang) Sdn Bhd and UOL Serviced Residences Sdn
Bhd. He is Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

He holds a Malaysia Certificate of Education and has more than
33 years of experience in the financial industry.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LTD. 15
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50 2011 8 22 Age 50. Mrs. Ip was appointed to the Board on 22 August 2011
as a non-executive director. She is also a member of the Bank’s
Executive, Audit and Risk Management Committees.
2011
2012 1 2012 11 Mrs. Ip joined UOB in 2011. She is responsible for developing the
Greater China strategy for the Bank and was appointed as CEO
of United Overseas Bank Hong Kong Office in January 2012.
26 She is also an independent non-executive director of SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited.

Mrs. Ip is a seasoned banker with more than 26 years of experience
in both consumer and corporate banking. Prior to joining UOB,
2008 “ Mrs. Ip held several senior management positions in product and
sales management, customer segment management and risk
2012 management in Hong Kong, the United States, Canada, Singapore
and China.

Mrs. Ip’s achievements have been recognised by Asia Retalil
Congress when she was awarded the “Best International Retalil
Banker” in 2008 and when she was announced as one of the top
100 outstanding Chinese businesswoman in the Greater China
region for 2012 by China Outstanding Female Entrepreneurs
Association.

Mrs. Ip holds a Bachelor Degree of Arts from University of

Hong Kong and MBA from Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology.

16 KRBT (HE ) FRAF
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Cham Tao Soon

Age 73. Prof. Cham was appointed to the Board on 27 December
2007 as an independent and non-executive director. He is also the
Chairman of the Bank’s Nominating and Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee, and a member of the Bank’s Connected
Transaction Control Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Prof. Cham is a director of United Overseas Bank (UOB) and a
director of UOB’s subsidiary, Far Eastern Bank. He is the Chairman
of NSL Ltd, MFS Technology, Soup Restaurant Group and Board of
Governors of Singapore-China Foundation, and Deputy Chairman
of Singapore Press Holdings. He is a director of Singapore
International Foundation.

Prof. Cham is the Chancellor of SIM University and Chairman
of its Board of Trustees, and founding President of Nanyang
Technological University (1981-2002).

He holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil, Hons) from University
of Malaya, a Bachelor of Science (Mathematics, Hons) from
University of London and a Doctor of Philosophy (Fluid
Mechanics) from University of Cambridge, UK. He is also a
Fellow of Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy of
Engineering, Singapore, Royal Academy of Engineering, UK and
Institution of Mechanical Engineers, UK and a foreign member of
Royal Swedish Academy of Engineering Sciences, Sweden.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LTD. 17
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Zeng Zhi Jie

Age 45. Mr. Zeng was appointed to the Board on 26 October 2010 as
an independent and non-executive director. He is also the Chairman
of Connected Transaction Control Committee and Risk Management
Committee, and the Member of Nominating and Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee.

Mr. Zeng is currently the Senior Managing Director of the CITIC
Capital Holdings Limited, the General Manager and Managing
Partner of Kaixin Investment, as well as the Chairman of China
Special Article Logistics Company. Mr. Zeng serves as director or
independent director for six listed companies namely Great Wall
Technology Company Ltd, Chinasoft International Ltd., Shanghai
AJ Corporation, E-house, Vimicro and AutoNavi as well as other
companies such as State Microelectronics. Mr. Zeng serves as
Co-chairman of the Venture Capital Association of Investment
Association of China, the executive director of Asia America Multi-
Technology Association (AAMA) China Branch and board member
of WRSACC 2005 Committee.

Prior to joining Kaixin Investment, Mr. Zeng was a managing
director of Walden International and mainly responsible for venture
investments in China and Asia Pacific. Prior to Walden International,
Mr. Zeng worked for CITIC Pacific Ltd in Hong Kong and Mitsubishi
Corporation in Tokyo, Japan.

Mr. Zeng holds his Bachelor of Science in Economics from
the University of Nagasaki, Japan, and Master of Science in
Management from Stanford University.
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2009
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30%

Corporate Banking

After a decade of strong growth, the Chinese economy fell below
the psychologically important 8 per cent growth level in 2012 to
7.8 per cent. Instead of repeating an aggressive stimulus package
similar to that offered in 2009, the Central Government took the
opportunity to restructure the economy through programmes
focused on urbanisation of the lower-tiered cities and stimulus
measures geared towards boosting domestic consumption.

In the light of a more challenging economic landscape, UOB (China)
Corporate Banking focused on helping customers manage the
challenging business environment and to seize growth opportunities
both domestically and in the region.

In 2012, we enhanced our cash management capability with
more tailored features to help customers better manage their
inter-company cash flow and ultimately to increase the efficiency
of payments and collections.

We offered more trade-based financing products and rolled out
a new commodity hedging solution to help onshore customers
manage the fluctuation of commodity prices more efficiently.

We also supported our customers in their growth plans by taking
a more active role in leading onshore syndicated loans in 2012.

In recognition of more customers seeking growth outside of
China, we set up a specialised unit at the start of 2012 dedicated
to providing customers with seamless cross-border support and
financial solutions across our regional and global network.

Singapore in particular is an important offshore destination for
Chinese companies as it is a gateway to Southeast Asia, a regional
commodities trading hub and an offshore Yuan clearing centre. To
help our customers establish a presence in Singapore and to extend
their businesses across Southeast Asia, our team in China worked
closely with the UOB Foreign Direct Investment Advisory Unit based
in Singapore to deliver a seamless regional banking experience.

In 2012, our Corporate Banking segment achieved a 30 per cent
year-on-year growth in overall income, of which offshore income
grew by more than 70 per cent. Income quality improved with more
diversified revenue streams and higher non-interest income.

In 2013, our Corporate Banking team will continue to focus on
fostering deep customer relationships. We are well-positioned
to support our customers with the full spectrum of commercial,
transaction and investment banking solutions through our strong
Southeast Asian network.
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Commercial Banking

2012 was a challenging year as the global economy dealt with the
European debt crisis, the US fiscal cliff and the economic slowdown
in major emerging economies, including China. Despite the
challenging global and domestic economic conditions, UOB (China)
Commercial Banking continued to stay focused and worked hard to
help our customers seek new opportunities to grow their business.

During the year, we drew upon the expertise of our Global Market
and Investment Management and Transaction Banking partners
to enhance our range of products and services covering treasury,
trade finance and cash management.

We also tapped on our extensive regional network in Southeast
Asia to provide one-stop cross-border advisory and financing
services to our customers. In particular we helped Chinese
privately owned enterprises establish business presence in
Singapore from which they can expand into Southeast Asia.

We maintained prudence and discipline in cost management as we
grew our Commercial Banking business. In 2012, our total income
and operating contribution increased by 21 per cent and 57 per cent
respectively and our customer base increased by 25 per cent. These
numbers were achieved alongside significant increases in cross-
selling income, reduction in cost-to-income ratio and improvement
in productivity.

In 2013, Commercial Banking China will continue to focus on
enhancing our product offerings and capabilities. We will continue
to work closely with our Foreign Direct Investment Advisory Unit
and Global Business Development Team in Singapore to provide
our clients a seamless service in China and throughout the region.
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2013

Transaction Banking

Our Transaction Banking team focused on providing customers
with comprehensive end-to-end cash management and trade
finance solutions. Our cash management solutions cover payables,
receivables and liquidity management services and are accessible
through our branch network and business internet banking
platform. For trade finance solutions, we provide a full suite of
trade products and financing services, as well as trade advisory,
structuring and risk mitigation solutions.

In 2012, we continued to invest in our transaction banking
capabilities and enhanced our product suites to help our
customers manage the risk exposures inherent in cross-border
trade deals as they looked more to the region to fuel their next
stage of development.

In recognition of the increased demand from customers for cross-
border RMB settlement services, we also introduced new RMB
foreign direct investment settlement services.

We continued to strengthen our relationships with customers
through information and knowledge sharing workshops and
seminars. From these sessions, we have analysed our customers’
requirements in detail and used the insights we have gained to build
new solutions.

Both cash management and trade finance revenues experienced
strong growth in 2012. Supported by our Group Transaction
Banking team based in Singapore, we will continue to enhance
our product offering to meet the growing and changing cash
management and trade finance needs of our customers in 2013.
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Global Markets and Investment Management

By working closely with our customers and taking views on the
market developments and opportunities, Global Markets & Investment
Management (GMIM) delivered strong results in a volatile year.

In 2012, GMIM developed a series of new foreign exchange, interest
rate, commodities and structured products to meet our customers’
needs. We also set up a good platform to offer diversified market
products and services to those large and middle corporate customers
and high-net-worth individuals in China.

In 2012, we were granted an inter-bank gold bilateral trading
business license from the Shanghai Gold Exchange and by the end
of the year had launched gold bilateral trading.

As a result of increased engagement with our onshore institutional
counterparties we saw an increase in trading volume. We also
recognised the customer demands on RMB cross-border
transactions and effectively provided services in this area.

With growing volatility in the market, bond trading remained brisk
in 2012. Investment income rose based on increased bonds
transactions. Our fixed income portfolio included but was not
limited to Government bonds, PBOC bills, policy bank bonds and
Triple-A rated commercial paper and medium-term notes. Bonds
trading and investment continued to be one of our core treasury
businesses.
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Personal Financial Services

Despite the challenging economic circumstances globally and
in China in 2012, UOB (China) Personal Financial Services (PFS)
continued to focus on our customers’ needs by introducing new
products and providing quality advice to help them meet their
financial goals. As a result, we performed well, achieving record
customer numbers and portfolio growth, and cemented our position
in the market.

Wealth Management Business

We continued to build on the momentum gained in 2011 and
expanded our Privilege Banking services in China to meet the needs
of a growing affluent consumer base and higher personal income
levels. Three new Privilege Banking Centres were opened in 2012
in Beijing, Tianjin and Hangzhou, complementing our existing five
centres.

To meet the needs of customers seeking diversification of their
portfolios, the UOB (China) QDII Investment Scheme-Global
Units Trust was launched in late 2012. The fund invests in various
investment assets such as equities and bonds, in both matured
and emerging markets globally.

We marked another milestone with the introduction of Personal
Internet Banking in 2012. The service provides customers with the
convenience of banking from home or on the go. Customers can
easily make transactions at any time and any place by logging on
with computers.

Secured Lending Business

Our mortgage business grew steadily in 2012 despite the
challenging property market. We have deepened our business in
cities such as Shanghai, Beijing, Chengdu and Shenyang.
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Technology and Operations

Technology and Operations (T&O) plays a critical role in supporting
UOB (China)'s business strategy and growth. It is responsible
for the centralisation and standardisation of our operations, and
information technology management. T&O also underpins our
competitiveness in China by promoting business innovation and
operational efficiency.

For 2012, we refined our operational risk control procedures
in line with UOB Group and local regulatory requirements. In
partnership with our business units, we also launched our
Personal Internet Banking and Retail Investment platforms,
upgraded our ATMs to support China UnionPay's (CUP)
integrated chip (IC) cards, as well as commenced inter-bank
discounting of bankers acceptance drafts and trading of
precious metals. We also established a new Customer Hotline
for our retail and wholesale customers as a convenient channel
for our customers to conduct their banking needs.

In the year ahead, we will continue to strengthen our information
technology management to further optimise and automate our
Bank's processes and leverage the UOB Group's regional platform
and resources to facilitate product development and speed-to-market.
Key initiatives we will focus on in 2013 include the launch of Mobile
Banking, IC card issuance and CUP online payments for our retail
customers, as well as a revamped Global E-Banking platform for
wholesale customers.

In line with our Group's regionalisation strategy, T&O will continue
to strive towards streamlining business processes to improve
operational efficiency and risk controls, and to provide quality,
uniformed, and excellent customer service.
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Engage
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Human Resources

UOB (China) has an employee base of more than 1,000 people
across nine cities. With the continued growth of our business, our
Human Resources team focused on building and maintaining a
highly motivated and collaborative workforce and culture.

In 2012, we launched a leadership competency framework across
the organisation. The framework consists four key leadership
competencies, namely: Strategise, Engage, Execute and Develop,
also known as SEED. The framework helps employees understand
more clearly what is expected of them and guides each person
towards being more effective in what they do as individuals and
across teams.

During the year UOB (China) continued to invest in training and
development programmes to equip employees with the relevant
skills to thrive in the competitive business environment. In 2012,
we increased the number of core skills courses from 215 to
270. We enhanced our management and technical capabilities
via specialised technical training, personal effectiveness and
leadership programmes.

During the year we actively developed our PEAK programme, which
is an integrated performance management framework for the Bank
to bring out the best in its people. Through PEAK, we hope to
raise the bar on performance excellence and productivity through
the four stages of the performance management lifecycle: Plan,
Engage, Appraise, Keep track. People managers are measured and
rewarded for not only the achievement of business results but also
how well they engage, lead and develop their teams.

This year, we also saw the first cohort of our young talents
complete the 15-month long Management Associates Programme.
These young talents selected from top universities in Shanghai,
Beijing, Chengdu and Xiamen have now started their career within
the Bank.
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UOB (China) is committed to upholding good corporate governance
which the Bank sees as fundamental to sustaining its business. In
establishing the corporate governance framework, the Bank takes
into account the provisions of:

a) the PRC Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded

XFEFE5EES Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations on
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks; and
2012 d) other relevant regulatory requirements.
12 31
The Board, Board Committees, the Supervisor and Senior
Management perform their respective duties according to the laws
and regulations, and based on the scope of powers as defined by
the Bank’s Articles of Association.
Board of Directors
There are six Directors on the Board, two of whom are
independent Directors. The size and composition of the Board
comply with regulatory requirements and the provisions in the
Articles of Association of the Bank. The Board members as at
31 December 2012 were:
%A 5 k2 R% HIEIEH
Name Gender Age Position Current term of office
/
60 Chairman/Non-executive and 20109 17 2018 9 16
Wee Ee Cheong Male ) 17 September 2010 to 16 September 2013
non-independent
( )
) 56 Executive (President and CEOQ) and 2011 66 201465
Tan Kian Huat Male 6 June 2011 to 5 June 2014
non-independent
59 2010 12 27 2013 12 26
Francis Lee Chin Yong Male Non-executive and non-independent 27 December 2010 to 26 December 2013
49 2011 8 22 2014 8 21
Christine Ip Female Non-executive and non-independent 22 August 2011 to 21 August 2014
73 2010 12 27 2013 12 26
Cham Tao Soon Male Non-executive and independent 27 December 2010 to 26 December 2013
45 2010 10 26 2013 10 25
Zeng Zhi Jie Male Non-executive and independent 26 October 2010 to 25 October 2013
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EFSSMEERRNT: The main responsibilities of the Board are:
° e provide strategic directions and approve strategic business
initiatives, and approve the business plans and annual budget;
° e review and monitor the financial performance of the Bank, and
approve true and fair financial statements;
° e determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;
° e To set dividend policy and declare dividends;
° e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior
° Management and formulate the remuneration policy;
° e put in place an effective Management team;
° e approve the organisational structure;
( ) e oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk management
° policies, processes and infrastructure to manage various types
. of risk (including outsourcing risk);
e determine the risk profile of the Bank and approve credit
° / discretionary and investment limits;
. e review and monitor the risk management, internal audit and
compliance functions and ensure the adequacy of resources
. allocated to these functions;
° e evaluate the performance of the President and CEO and Senior
. Management;
e establish procedures and processes to avoid self-serving
° practices and conflicts of interest;
° e review and approve the Bank’s system of controls relating to

connected transactions;

e set the corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

e review the Bank’s information disclosure policy and be
responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the
information disclosed;

e report to the shareholder; and

2012 e exercise such other powers as authorised by the shareholder
and perform such other functions as required by the laws,
regulations and the Bank'’s Articles of Association.

The Board holds four scheduled meetings in a year. Additional
meetings may be held whenever required.

2012
The Bank’s Articles of Association also provide for Board resolutions
to be passed by way of circulation.

In 2012, the Board held four meetings and all Directors attended
the meetings.

The procedures for fixing a Board meeting, the quorum required for
constituting the meeting, the proceedings at the meeting, and the
procedures for voting and passing of resolutions complied with the
requirements of the applicable PRC laws and regulations and the
Bank’s Articles of Association. The minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary.

The Board passed seven resolutions by way of circulation in 2012.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board
Committees, namely the Executive Committee (EXCO), Connected
Transactions Control Committee (CTCC), Audit Committee
(AC), Nominating and Remuneration Committee (NRC) and Risk
Management Committee (RMC).

(1) Executive Committee
a. The EXCO members are Mr. Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman), Mr.
Tan Kian Huat, Mr. Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mrs. Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO has oversight responsibilities for:

e the Bank’s overall business operation, including formulating
internal policies and business strategies, monitoring the
execution of business plans and approving relevant credit limits;
and

e all human resource matters, except for those pertaining to the
President and CEO, Deputy CEO and Deputy President.

c. The EXCO meets at least once a month and whenever required
in the discharge of its functions.

The EXCO held 19 meetings in 2012.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a. The CTCC members are Mr. Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman), Mr. Francis
Lee Chin Yong, Professor Cham Tao Soon and Mr. William
Chong Kim Khong.

b. The CTCC’s main responsibilities are to:

e establish and administer the system for managing connected
transactions;

e manage connected transactions and control the risks from such
transactions;

e examine non-material connected transactions; and

e review and submit material connected transactions to the Board
for approval.

c. The CTCC met once in 2012.
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(3) Audit Committee

a.

The AC members are Professor Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Mr.
Francis Lee Chin Yong, Mrs. Christine Ip and Mr. Zeng Zhi Jie.

The AC’s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all matters
relating to:

financial statements, and internal and external audit plans and
reports;

adequacy of internal accounting controls and material internal
controls;

scope and results of internal and external audits;

quality of and any significant change in accounting policies or
practices;

adequacy of internal audit resources;

significant findings from internal audit investigations;

approval of external auditors’ fees; and

appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors and
the head of the internal audit function.

The AC held four meetings in 2012.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a.

The NRC members are Professor Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Mr.
Wee Ee Cheong, Mr. Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mr. Zeng Zhi Jie.

The NRC’s main responsibilities are to:

recommend candidates for appointment to the Board and
Board Committees;

recommend a framework of remuneration for Directors and
key Senior Management officers (including President and CEO,
Deputy CEO and Deputy President) for the Board’s approval;
and

put in place a system for assessing the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole, the contribution of each Board Committee
and Director, and the performance of the President and CEO.

. In 2012, the NRC met once and passed two resolutions by way

of circulation.



(6) REEBEZERS
a.

c. 2012

%£FUE

2012

AFIGE
Corporate Governance

(5) Risk Management Committee
a. The RMC members are Mr. Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman), Mr. Francis
Lee Chin Yong, Mrs. Christine Ip and Professor Cham Tao Soon.

b. The RMC’s main responsibilities are to:

* review and recommend risk management strategies, policies
and risk tolerance level for the Board’s approval;

e oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent with
the approved strategies and policies;

e review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s
risk management structure (including frameworks, policies,
methodologies, human resources, processes, information,
infrastructure and systems) in identifying, measuring, monitoring
and controlling various types of risks;

e review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk
portfolio composition and the management, monitoring and
control of risks; and

e report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk
event or trend for the Board’s attention.

c. The RMC met four times in 2012.

Supervisor

The Bank has one Supervisor who is appointed by the Bank’s
shareholder. The present Supervisor is Dr. Wee Cho Yaw. The
appointment of the Supervisor is in compliance with the regulatory
requirements and the Bank’s Articles of Association.

The main responsibilities and powers of the Supervisor include:

e inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the Bank;

e overseeing the actions of the Directors and Senior Management
officers that the Bank is run in a prudent manner, and taking
corrective actions where necessary;

e safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank, the
shareholder and other interested parties, particularly the
depositors; and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant to the
laws, regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association, and
as may be delegated by the shareholder.

In 2012, the Supervisor was invited to attend Board and Board
Committee meetings and had duly performed his responsibility of
supervising the Board and Senior Management strictly according
to the PRC Company Law and the Bank’s Articles of Association.
The Supervisor provided oversight on the Bank’s operational and
financial matters and the performance of the Directors and Senior
Management, through the receipt of management reports and
reviews of the monthly, quarterly, semi-annual and annual reports on
the Bank’s operations and risk management and through meetings
and discussions with the Directors and Senior Management.
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Performance of Independent Directors

There are two independent Directors on the Board as of 31
December 2012, namely Professor Cham Tao Soon and Mr. Zeng
Zhi Jie, whose appointments are in compliance with the Guidelines
for Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Foreign Banks,
Guidelines for Independent Directors and External Supervisors of
Joint Shareholding Commercial Banks and Opinion on Enhancing
the Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Foreign Banks.
Professor Cham Tao Soon is the Chairman of the AC and NRC, and
a member of the CTCC and RMC. Mr. Zeng Zhi Jie is the Chairman
of the CTCC and RMC, and a member of the AC and NRC.

For the year under review, the two independent Directors
attended all four Board meetings convened in 2012 and
discharged their duties diligently and objectively. They contributed
to the decision-making and oversight by the Board and Board
Committees and safeguarded the lawful rights and interests of
the Bank and the shareholder.

(1) Independent Directors’ Attendance at Board
Meetings in 2012

Name of Independent No. of Board No. of Board Meetings Absent with

Director Meetings held attended Apologies Remarks
4 4 0 ,

Cham Tao Soon
4 4 0 /

Zeng Zhi Jie

(2) M FFEWHITEXRFTURH FIWHER
2012

HEREFMEN

(2) Dissent Raised by Independent Directors
In 2012, the independent Directors did not raise any dissent towards
any matter at Board meetings or under any other circumstance.

Access to Information of Supervisor and Directors

The Supervisor and Directors have unfettered assess to information
and Management and receive timely and comprehensive financial,
risk management and operational reports to facilitate informed
discussions during meetings. They also have access to the Company
Secretary whose responsibilities include advising the Supervisor and
the Board on regulatory changes and best practices in corporate
governance. In discharging their duties, the Supervisor and Directors
may seek independent professional advice, if necessary, at the
Bank’s expense.
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EBREEEM R \ Senior Management Structure

Name Position Sex Age Assignment Academic Degree RelevantlYears
Commencement of Experience
Mechanical Engineering, Honours
President and CEO University of Leeds
TAN Kian Huat Male 00 May2008 29
Head, Branches/Channels Master in Business Administration
University of Bradford
) ) 49  Sep 2012 Master of Science 17
LIN Li Head, Technology and Operations  Female Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics
ANG Moh Chuan Head, Corporate Banking Male 42 Qct 2010 Bachelor of Accoun?ancy Lo 7
Nanyang Technological University
KU Tse Kian Head, Commercial Banking Male 42 Mar 2010 Bachelor of Busmesls, Honloursl 17
Nanyang Technological University
Bachelor of Business Administration
Shanghai University of Finance and
ZHOU Man Head, Personal Financial 39 May 2011 Economics 14
Cherry Services Female
Master in Business Administration
Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics
YAP Teck Yong Head, Global Market and Male 53 Nov 2010 Bacheloerf Science . 25
Douglas Investment Manadement Honours in Computer Science
9 University of British Columbia
. . 55  Sep 2008 Bachelor of Commerce 31
TEH Wee Jin Head, Credit Approval Male University of Otago, New Zealand
CHQNG Kim Khong Head, Risk Management Male 45  Jan 2008 Bachelor of Busmes.s, Hon'ours' 21
William Nanyang Technological University
TEH Han Yi Heaq, Finance and Corporate Female 42 Sep 2012 Bachelor of Accountancy 7
Services ) N
Nanyang Technological University
HONG Xiao Yan 36 Dec 2007 Master in Business Administration 15
Head, Human Resources Female .
Amy Fudan University
LI. Gang Head, Internal Audit Male 39  Dec 2007 Bachelor.of Econgmlcs 16
Rick Shanghai University
Bachelor of Laws
WANG Yuan . 39 Dec 2007 Hohai University 16
Eliza Head, Legal and Secretariat Female

Master in Business Administration
Fudan University
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Bachelor of Laws

TAN Chong Meng Head, Compliance Male 41 Jun 2009 King's College London, 14
Louis S
University of London
LIM Chor Khiang Head of Transaction Banking Male 42 May 2011 Bachelor Degree of Science i
National University of Singapore
YEONG Kok Leng General Manager of Beijing 44 Aug 2010 Bachelor of Business Administration 19
. Male ; . )
Vincent Branch National University of Singapore
LOH Nee Thiam General Manager of Male 42 May 2010 Bachelor of Business 18
Harry Shanghai Branch Nanyang Technological University
TOK Aik Hong General Manager of Male 38 Mar2010 Bachelor in Banking and Finance, 12
Lawrence Guangzhou Branch o
Honours University of London
HUANG Ying Qeneral Manager of Female 41 Sep 2011 Master gf Solean—:‘ in Intemgtlonal 18
Xiamen Branch Economics Banking and Finance
Cardiff Universifty, U.K.
GOH Tuan Chiok General Manager of Male 41 Sep 2008 Bachelor in lBu5|lness Alenlstratlon 15
Shenzhen Branch National University of Singapore
Chan Yoke Voon SﬁgﬁrzlnMEz?z;Of Male 46 Aug 2010 Bachelor of Economic 18
yang National University of Malaysia
Bachelor of Commerce
Nanyang University
LIM Tow Meng gﬁgs%yg:;%‘: of Male 60 Nov201t Diploma in Management Consultancy 82
9 National Productivity Board, Singapore
Master in Business Administration
University of Leicester
HUANG Zhi Ping General Manager of Tianjin Male 38 Feb 2011 Master of Law 9
Kenneth Branch Peking University
YE Yan General Manager of Hangzhou 41 Feb 2012 ) ) 18
Beic Branch Female Electrical Engineer
Y Haerbin Engineering University
ZHANG Da Lin Branch Manager of Jingan Male 43 Oct 2010 Master of Business Administration 10
Alex Sub-Branch o
Grenoble University
CHEN Wen B.raf‘Ch Manager of Female 85 May 2011 Master of Business Administration 10
Wanda Xintiandi Sub-Branch Lo '
Southern Cross University, Australia
XQ Jee Branch Manager of Male 34 May 2012 Master of Business Administration 6
Sting Dongcheng Sub-Branch

University of Sunshine Coast, Australia
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Internal Control and Audit

Internal Control

UOB (China) has a well-established internal control system and
adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and the Group’s
guidelines. These practices enable the Bank to set strategic and
operational objectives in providing quality assurance for its business
development.

The Board emphasises establishing a sound internal control system
through the review of various committees’ meeting minutes,
management and budget reports, internal audit reports, and also
from the exchange of insights with industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system arises from the continuous improvement in internal control
environment, including, but not limited to, the strengthening
of risk management processes, communication and feedback
mechanism, as well as evaluation and correction. The internal
control system can provide a reasonable level of assurance in
relation to implementing legal statutes and regulations.

Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports to the Audit
Committee (AC) and Group Audit functionally, and to the President
and CEO of UOB (China) administratively.

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board and
Management to discharge their legal and executive obligations
by providing independent, objective assurance and value-added
services designed to improve the Bank’s operations. It helps
the Bank accomplish its objectives by having a systematic and
disciplined approach to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal control, risk management and governance
systems and processes.

Internal Audit adheres to the Internal Audit Guidelines for Financial
Institutions as governed by CBRC and adopts a risk-based
approach in developing its strategic audit plan, which is reviewed
annually. Audit projects are prioritised and scoped according to
the assessment of inherent risks, controls of various risk types and
regulatory hotspots as well. The audit scope covers all businesses,
operations and the infrastructure and applications of systems in
headquarters and branches.

All audit reports are provided to the AC with significant issues
highlighted. Internal Audit also closely monitors the follow-up
actions taken by the Management on the issues highlighted by
Internal Audit, external audit and regulators.
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The effective management of financial and non financial risks is
integral to the Bank’s business success. The Bank’s approach
to risk management is to ensure risks are managed within levels
established by the Bank’s various senior management committees
and approved by the Board and/or its committees.

The Bank has established a comprehensive framework of policies

and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control risks.

These are guided by the Bank’s risk management principles

which advocate:

e Delivery of sustainable long-term growth using sound risk
management principles and business practices;

e Continual improvement of risk discovery capabilities and risk
controls; and

e Business development based on a prudent, consistent and
efficient risk management framework.

Risk Management Governance and Framework

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and oversees

a governance structure to ensure that the Bank’s business

activities are:

e Conducted in a safe and sound manner in line with the highest
standards of professionalism;

e Consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and risk
appetite; and

e Subjected to adequate risk management and internal controls.

In this, the Board is supported by its committees in the oversight of
risk management framework, policies and processes. The Executive
Committee (EXCO) assists the Board in the approval of risk policies
and risk limits. The Risk Management Committee (RMC) oversees
the establishment of the risk management framework and reviews
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s risk management
infrastructure. The RMC also reviews risk exposures of the Bank
and highlights adverse risk events or trends to the Board.
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The day-to-day management of the Bank is delegated to its Senior
Management. The President and CEO forms senior management
committees to assist in making business decisions which weigh
risks with returns. The Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)
and the Risk and Capital Committee (RCC), provide oversight of
all risk related matters. These senior management committees
meet at least monthly to review independent risk assessment
and monitoring reports submitted by the independent Risk
Management function. All risk policies, limits and processes are
reviewed by these committees before submission for approval by
the EXCO. Meeting minutes of the committees are also submitted
for notation by the RMC and the Board.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk Policies and Processes

The Bank has established well defined credit risk acceptance
parameters, policies and procedures to maintain a high quality
and well diversified credit portfolio. The Credit Risk Management
Division (CRM) provides independent oversight of credit risk and is
responsible for the analysis and reporting of all elements of credit
risk. CRM develops a comprehensive set of credit policies and
guidelines for approval by the RCC and EXCO. It actively engages
business units on credit related matters and facilitates business
development within a prudent, consistent and efficient credit risk
management framework. Other responsibilities include monitoring
and reviewing credit risk exposures, performing analysis on credit
portfolio performance for fine-tuning policies and risk acceptance
guidelines as well as preparing various credit risk related reports to
management.

Independent Credit Approval

To maintain independence and integrity of the credit approval
process, the credit approval function is segregated from credit
origination. Credit approval authority is delegated through a risk
based credit discretionary limits (CDL) structure that is tiered
according to the borrower’s credit rating. Delegation of CDL
follows a stringent process that takes into consideration the
experience, seniority and track record of the approving officers. Al
credit approving officers are guided by credit policies and credit
acceptance guidelines that are periodically reviewed to ensure
their continued relevance to the Bank’s business strategy and the
business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank has implemented an internal credit rating system as
part of its credit decision process. The system incorporates both
statistical models and expert judgment scorecards as part of
the credit approval process for non retail exposures. The system
ensures that ratings are assigned to borrowers in a consistent
manner and systematically captures the rating history for model
back testing and validation.
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Credit Risk Concentration

A risk-sensitive process is in place to regularly review, manage
and report credit concentrations and portfolio quality. This includes
monitoring concentration limits and exposures by borrowers,
obligors, industries, collaterals, and countries. Concentration limits
are generally set as a percentage of the Bank’s eligible capital base.

Borrower limits ensure lending to borrowers with weaker credit
ratings is confined to acceptable levels. These limits are generally
tiered according to the borrowers’ risk ratings.

Obligor limits ensure that there is no undue concentration to a
group of related borrowers that may potentially pose a single risk to
the Bank.

Industry limits ensure that any adverse effects arising from an
industry-specific risk event is confined to acceptable levels.

Country Risk

Country risk is managed within an established framework which
includes setting of limits for each country based on the country’s
risk rating as well as the Bank’s business strategy. Country risk
exposures are analysed and significant trends are reported to the
RCC and RMC periodically.

Credit Risk Mitigation

As a fundamental credit principle, the Bank generally does not
grant credit facilities solely on the basis of the collateral provided.
All credit facilities are granted based on the credit standing of the
borrower, source of repayment and debt servicing ability. Collateral
is taken whenever possible to mitigate the credit risk assumed.
The market value of the collateral is monitored periodically. The
frequency of valuation depends on the type, liquidity and volatility
of the collateral value. The main types of collateral accepted by
the Bank are real estate, bank guarantee, cash and machinery.
Corporate guarantee or personal guarantee from the principal
promoters is often obtained when the borrower’s credit worthiness
is not sufficient to justify an extension of credit.
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Credit Exposures from Foreign Exchange and Derivatives
Pre-settlement limits for foreign exchange (FX) and derivative
transactions are established using the Potential Future Exposure
(PFE) approach. This approach takes into consideration the
transaction currency and tenor to address the credit risk exposures
arising from adverse market movements.

For internal risk management, master agreements such as
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master
Agreements and related Credit Support Annex (CSA) and National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII)
Agreement have been established with active counterparties to
manage counterparty credit risk arising from FX and derivative
activities. The agreements allow the Bank to settle all outstanding
transactions in the event of counterparty default, resulting in a
single net claim against or in favour of the counterparty.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress tests form an integral part of the Bank’s credit portfolio
management process. Periodic credit stress tests are conducted
to allow the Bank to assess the potential credit losses arising from
exceptional but plausible adverse events.

Delinquency Monitoring

An account is considered as delinquent when payment is not
received on the due date. Any delinquent account, including
revolving credit facility (such as an overdraft) with limit excesses, is
closely monitored and managed through a disciplined process
by officers from business units and Risk Management Function.
Where appropriate, such accounts are also subject to more
frequent credit reviews.
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WEHE., REZFSNANR BN Loan Classification, Provisioning and Write Off
The Bank classifies its loan portfolio according to the borrower’s
90 ability to repay the credit facility from its normal source of income.

“ " Any account which is delinquent or (for revolving credit facility
such as an overdraft) in excess of more than 90 days overdue will
automatically be categorised as “non-performing”.

“w ”u ”

“w now noow ”

All borrowing accounts are classified into “Pass”, “Special Mention”,
“ o " “Substandard”, “Doubtful” or “Loss” in accordance with the
guidelines of China Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC).

Upgrading and de-classification of a non-performing account to
“Pass” or “Special Mention” status must be supported by a credit
assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows and financial
position of the borrower. The Bank must also be satisfied that once
the account is de-classified, it is unlikely to be classified again in the
near future.

A restructured loan is categorised as non-performing and placed
on the appropriate classified grade depending on the Bank’s
assessment of the financial condition and repayment ability of the
borrower based on the restructured terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBRC guidelines after
careful consideration of the future recovery value including
liquidation of collateral of the non-performing account. A classified
account is written off when there is no realisable tangible collateral
securing the account and all feasible avenues of recovery have
been exhausted.
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BRHEBETISE ARTEAT [2}°4
Loans by Industry Distribution RMB millions (%)
Manufacturing 4,920 32%
Professionals & Private Individuals 3,329 22%

Property and Real Estate 3,212 21%
Wholesale and Retail 1,615 1%
Agriculture,Forestry,Animal Husbandry & Fishery 478 3%

Others 1,662 11%
Total 15,216 100%
BRREESTHT ARTEAT Ak
Loans by Booking Branch RMB millions (%)
Shanghai 7,015 46%
Beijing 2,148 14%
Chengdu 1,546 10%
Tianjin 1,426 9%
Guangzhou 1,166 8%
Xiamen 809 5%
Shenyang 640 4%
Hangzhou 257 2%
Shenzhen 219 2%
Total 15,216 100%
BRAESLERFRERER ARTEAT [2)°4
Loans by Classification RMB millions (%)
Pass 15,007 99%
Special Mention 101 1%
Substandard 30 0%
Doubtful 0 0%
Loss 78 0%
Total 15,216 100%
2012 107.9 , As at end of 2012, total non-performing loans amounted to RMB
0.70% 107.9 million, representing 0.70 per cent of the Bank’s total loan
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Market Risk

Market risk arises from all market price sensitive financial
instruments including debt securities, foreign exchange contracts,
equity and derivative instruments, as well as from balance sheet
structural positions. The Bank is exposed to market risk in its
trading portfolios arising mainly from changes in interest rates and
foreign exchange rates, its client-driven market making and product
structuring activities as well as trading activities.

The Board and EXCO approve the Bank’s market risk
management framework and policies and delegate the
responsibility of day-to-day oversight of market risk management
to the ALCO. The ALCO meets monthly to review and provide
directions on all market risk related matters. The Market and
Balance Sheet Risk Management Division (MBSM) provides
support to ALCO with the establishment of the market risk
management framework, policies and control procedures. An
independent market risk exposure report is also submitted to the
RMC and the Board on quarterly basis.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk policies
and practices, the validation of valuation and risk models, the
control structure with appropriate delegation of authority and
market risk limits. In addition, a product/service programme
process ensures that all market risk issues identified are adequately
addressed prior to the launch of new products and services. The
Market Risk Control Division (MRC) provides independent valuation
of products traded, monitoring of market risk limits and the
reporting of any limit excesses and ratification on a daily basis.

The Bank adopts a daily Value-at-Risk (VaR) measure to estimate
market risk within a 99 per cent confidence interval using the
historical simulation method. This methodology does not make
assumptions on the distribution of returns and the correlations
between risk classes. The method assumes that possible future
changes in market rates may be implied by observed historical
market movements.

VaR estimates are backtested against profit and loss of the
trading book to validate the robustness of the methodology. The
backtesting process analyses whether the exceptions are due to
model deficiencies or market volatility. All backtesting exceptions
are reviewed and addressed where appropriate.

To complement the VaR measure, stress and scenario tests are
performed to identify the Bank’s vulnerability to event risk. These
tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible extreme losses to
facilitate proactive management of market risk.
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bk L 3l Liquidity Risk
The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund its day-to-day
operations, meet deposit withdrawals and loan disbursements,
participate in new investments, and repay borrowings. Hence,
liquidity is managed in a manner to address known as well as
unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO and EXCO.
These policies, controls and limits enable the Bank to monitor and
manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources of funds
are available over a range of market conditions. These include
minimising excessive funding concentrations by diversifying the
sources and terms of funding as well as maintaining a portfolio of
high quality and marketable debt securities.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in its liquidity management
by continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring that liquidity limits
are strictly adhered to and that there are adequate liquid assets to
meet cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is managed actively to ensure a balance

“ n ! between cost effectiveness, continued accessibility to funds, and

“ T " diversification of funding sources. Important factors in ensuring
liquidity are competitive pricing, proactive management of the Bank’s

core deposits and the maintenance of customer confidence. Core

deposits are generally stable non-bank deposits, such as current

accounts, savings accounts and fixed deposits. The Bank monitors

the stability of its core deposits by analysing their volatility over time.

Liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk management
framework, and is measured and managed on a projected cash
flow basis. The Bank is monitored under ‘business as usual’,
‘bank specific crisis’ and ‘general market crisis’ scenarios. Cash
flow mismatch limits are established to limit the Group’s liquidity
exposure. The Bank also employs liquidity early warning indicators
and trigger points to signal possible contingency situations.

Contingency funding plans are in place to identify potential
liquidity crises using a series of warning indicators. Crisis
escalation processes and various strategies including funding and
communication have been developed to minimise the impact of any
liquidity crunch.
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Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

The ALCO, under delegated authority from the Board, maintains
oversight of the effectiveness of the interest rate risk management
structure. The MBSM Division supports the ALCO in monitoring the
interest rate risk profile of the banking book. At a tactical level, the
Global Markets and Investment Management (GMIM) Function is
responsible for the effective management of balance sheet risk in
accordance with approved balance sheet risk management policies.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to protect
and enhance capital or economic net worth through adequate,
stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings under a broad
range of possible economic conditions.

Exposure is quantified on a monthly basis using static analysis
tools which include repricing schedules and sensitivity analysis.
They provide indications of the potential impact of interest rate
changes on interest income and price value through the analysis
of the sensitivity of assets and liabilities to changes in interest
rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies with different repricing periods,
currency and embedded optionality. Mismatches in the longer tenor
will experience greater change in the price-value of interest rate
positions than similar positions in the shorter tenor.

Stress testing, such as the static net interest income approach
and duration (static economic value of equity) approach, is also
performed regularly to determine the adequacy of capital in
meeting the impact of extreme interest rate movements on the
balance sheet. Such tests are also performed to provide early
warnings of potential extreme losses, facilitating the proactive
management of interest rate risks in an environment of rapid
financial market changes.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies,
processes and procedures by which business units identify, assess,
monitor and mitigate their operational risks.

Operational Risk Self Assessments involve identifying and assessing
inherent risks, as well as assessing the effectiveness of controls
to mitigate the identified risks. Action plans to address issues are
documented and monitored via Operational Risk Action Plans.

Key Operational Risk Indicators are statistical data collected
and monitored by business and support units on an on-going
basis to facilitate early detection of potential operational control
weaknesses. Trend analysis is carried out to identify systemic
issues that need to be addressed.

A database of operational risk events and losses has been
established and corrective actions, where necessary, will be taken
to rectify the underlying root cause. The analysis of loss trends
and root causes of loss events helps in strengthening the internal
control environment.

An insurance programme is in place to mitigate the risk of high
impact operational losses.
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A Product/Service Programme ensures that risks associated
with the introduction of new products and services are identified,
analysed and addressed prior to launch. The Product Sales
Committee also reviews product suitability, product risk disclosures
and reputation issues associated with the distribution of retail
investment products to individual customers. For online products
and services, extra care and precautionary measures are
implemented to protect customers’ confidentiality and interests.

The Bank’s Outsourcing Policy and Framework ensures that
outsourcing risks are adequately identified and managed prior to
entering into any new arrangements and on an on-going basis.

Effective business continuity and crisis management strategies and
plans have been developed and tested to ensure prompt recovery
of critical business functions in the event of major business and/or
system disruptions.

Legal risk is part of operational risk. Legal risk arises from
unenforceable, unfavourable, defective or unintended contracts;
lawsuits or claims; developments in laws and regulations; or non
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Business units
work with the Bank’s legal counsel and external legal counsel to
ensure that legal risks are effectively managed.

A framework to manage fraud risk is in place. It includes a policy
on fraud, a whistle-blowing programme, a material risk notification
protocol and a fraud risk awareness programme for all employees
of the Bank.

A framework to manage bribery risk is also in place. The Bank’s
Code of Conduct sets out anti-bribery and corruption provisions. Al
employees are required to observe the Code of Conduct and comply
with the guidelines. Disciplinary action will be taken against any
employee who fails to do so. Such disciplinary action may include
suspension or termination of employment. An anti-corruption digest
is sent to all employees regularly to keep them updated of latest
developments and to foster an anti-bribery culture.

Reputation risk is the adverse impact on earnings, liquidity or
capital arising from negative stakeholder perception or opinion on
the Bank’s business practices, activities and financial condition. The
Bank has a framework for managing reputation risk.

An operational risk management training and awareness

programme is in place to facilitate on-going promotion of an
effective risk management culture.
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(1) Shareholder Status Update
Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent

(2) There were no changes to the Bank’s registered capital,
nor any split or merger during the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank’s directors, supervisors or top
management was penalised by the regulatory authorities
during the reporting period.

(4) Other highlights during the reporting period:

e In 2012, UOB (China) registered a record net profit of
RMB 215 million.

e Asat 31 December 2012, our loan-to-deposit ratio was 64.3 per cent.

e In April 2012, UOB (China) Hangzhou Branch officially opened.

e |nJuly 2012, UOB (China) was granted QDII licence.

e |In November 2012, UOB (China) was amongst the first 20
banks to participate in trading bullion via the Shanghai Gold
Exchange's newly-launched inter-bank platform.
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Head Office

Unit 105, 2F, 3F,111 Dongyuan
Road Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch
Unit 101-104

111 Dongyuan Road
Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing’an Sub-branch (Shanghai)
1P-01/02, United Plaza

1468 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9388

Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xintiandi Sub-branch (Shanghai)
156-158 Ma Dang Road
Shanghai 200020

Tel: (86) (21) 2312 0888

Fax: (86) (21) 3330 2193

Beijing Branch

Unit 22/25 1/F, Unit 25 2/F, 25/F
Tower C Office Park

No.5 Jinghua South Street
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Dongcheng Sub-branch (Beijing)
Unit 108, Tower C

The Fifth Square

7 Chaoyangmen, North Avenue
Beijing 100010

Tel: (86) (10) 8418 3688

Fax: (86) (10) 8418 3668

Chengdu Branch

Level 1, First City Plaza
No. 308 Shuncheng Street
Chengdu 610017

Tel: (86) (28) 8667 6121
Fax: (86) (28) 8667 7121
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Guangzhou Branch

Unit 1107 - 1114

Metro Plaza

1883 - 187 Tianhe Bei Road
Guangzhou 510075

Tel: (86) (20) 8755 8787
Fax: (86) (20) 8755 6661

Shenyang Branch
Fortune Plaza Tower C
Unit C1, 1-2 Floor

No 55 Beizhan Road
Shenhe District
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3128 0606
Fax: (86) (24) 3128 0628

Shenzhen Branch

Unit 2, 3, 5 and 6, 13
Floor (North Side) Di Wang
Commercial Centre

Shun Hing Square

5002 Shennan Road East
Shenzhen 518008

Tel: (86) (755) 8246 1298
Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor United Overseas Bank
Building

19 Hubin Bei Road

Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

The Emperor Place

No. 236, 238 and 252, Hebei
Road

Heping District

Tianjin 300040

Tel: (86) (22) 2339 3688

Fax: (86) (22) 2321 0166

Hangzhou Branch

1-2F, No.171 and 181 Tian
Mu Shan Road, Xihu District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang 310013
Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666
Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619
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Auditors’ Report

Ernst and Young Hua Ming (2013) Shen Zi No 60658622_B01

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited, which comprise the balance sheet
as at 31 December 2012, the income statement, the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements. This responsibility includes:
(1) preparing and fairly presenting the financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises;
(2) designing, implementing and maintaining internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
the financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Chinese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with Code of Ethics for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform the audit
to obtain a reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers the internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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. HitER Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
2012 12 3 aspects, the financial position of United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
2012 as at 31 December 2012 and its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises.

Ernst and Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Huang, Yue Dong
Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yu, Mei
2013 3 21

21 March 2013
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Balance Sheets

2012 12 31

31 December 2012

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

FER 20124 12 A 31 H 2011 £ 12H 31 H
Notes 5 31-12-2012 31-12-2011
&rE Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 1 4,868,920,953 4,485,106,078
Due from banks 2 5,915,321,787 5,334,996,852
Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 3,458,240,679 3,453,454,659
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 4 633,769,055 1,002,657,140
Derivative financial assets 5 380,562,194 268,391,844
Interest receivables 6 178,642,756 266,221,686
Loans and advances to customers 7 14,916,638,219 13,422,820,499
Available-for-sale financial assets 8 3,499,934,488 6,313,879,613
Reverse repurchase financial assets 9 - 476,400,000
Fixed assets 10 40,722,620 45,005,471
Intangible assets 11 64,904,631 49,516,106
Deferred tax assets 12 48,663,293 52,990,043
Other assets 13 576,941,581 97,928,775
Total assets 34,583,262,256 35,269,368,766
fafk Liabilities
Due to banks and other financial institutions 15 217,861,781 3,220,674,628
Plagements from banks and other financial 16 5 700955 538 6 666,770,493
institutions ESEDS RS
Derivative financial liabilities 5 410,625,504 339,841,818
Customer deposits 17 23,944,690,429 21,105,906,994
Payroll payables 18 44,117,262 37,995,833
Tax payables 19 41,070,152 52,899,182
Interest payables 20 377,331,083 246,122,305
Other liabilities 21 70,895,264 41,451,807
Total liabilities 30,806,847,013 31,711,663,060
&N Equity
Paid-up capital 22 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
Capital reserves 23 4,393,784 271,974
Surplus reserves 24 48,126,669 26,667,896
General reserves 25 430,856,697 304,607,460
Retained earnings 26 293,038,093 226,158,376
Total equity 3,776,415,243 3,557,705,706

Total liabilities and equity

34,5883,262,256

35,269,368,766

60 133
The notes on pages 60 to 133 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Income Statements

2012 For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

B ER 2012 £ 2011 &£ &
Notes 5 2012 2011
—. BN . Operating income

Interest income 27 1,367,300,621 1,046,550,414
Interest expense 27 (741,645,757) (584,991,524)
Net interest income 27 625,654,864 461,558,890
Fee and commission income 28 66,580,507 43,102,898
Fee and commission expense 28 (9,841,087) (8,924,447)
Net fee and commission income 28 56,739,420 34,178,451
Investment income 29 219,338,798 204,780,078
Gains/(losses) from changes in fair value 30 40,820,906 (186,583,766)
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains (39,015,303) 108,485,712
/ Other operating (expense)/income (32,935,871) 12,080,647
Total operating income 870,602,814 634,500,012

Z. Bl H . Operating expenses
Business tax and surcharges (60,948,796) (47,654,155)
General and administrative expenses 31 (502,716,495) (450,607,386)
Impairment losses 32 (24,716,124) (5,379,210)
Total operating expenses (588,381,415) (503,640,751)
=, BlAE . Operating profit 282,221,399 130,859,261
Add: Non-operating income 33 5,138,596 850,364
Less: Non-operating expenses 34 (572,026) (8,504,481)
P BeRTR S . Profit before tax 286,787,969 123,205,144
Less: Income tax expense 35 (72,200,242) (28,695,761)
F. &EFE . Net profit 214,587,727 94,509,383
N, Hittgra s . Other comprehensive income 37 4,121,810 15,098,597
. ZEWEZE . Total comprehensive income 218,709,537 109,607,980

60 133

The notes on pages 60 to 133 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The financial statements from page 60 to 133 have been signed by:
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Chief Financial Officer: Teh Han Vi

Head, Finance: Juliet Chen Si Meng
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Cash Flow Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MiER

Notes 5

2012 £/

2012

2011 &

2011

—. BERIFENAESRE

1. Cash flows from operating activities
Net decrease in due from banks
Net decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions
Net increase in customer deposit and due to banks and other financial institutions

Net increase in placements from banks and other financial institutions

1,857,497,999

580,353,508

10,413,417,035

1,849,855,661

Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 1,464,892,161 984,066,375
Net decrease in reverse repurchase financial assets 176,400,000 393,600,000
Cash received from other operating activities 5,083,596 54,709,954
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 4,084,227,264  13,695,649,025

Net increase in due from banks

Net increase in placements with banks and other financial institutions

Net increase in loans and advances to customers

Net increase in due from the central bank

Net decrease in customer deposit and due to banks and other financial institutions
Net decrease in placements from banks and other financial institutions
Payments made for interest, service fee and commission

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Cash paid for all types of taxes

Cash paid for other operating activities

1,5618,925,779
321,333,879
164,029,412
966,514,955
620,278,066
308,812,491
142,025,255

212,685,516

3,308,471,999
1,7568,5679,0567
4,094,995,825

1,712,567,797

438,240,130
258,136,266
50,077,293

202,925,176

Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities

4,254,505,353

11,818,993,543

Net cash flows from operating activities

(170,278,089)

1,876,655,482

. BREBTENAERE

2. Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from maturity of investments
Cash received from investment income
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term assets
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities
Cash paid for investment

Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term assets

12,042,404,576
247,669,742
54,987
12,290,129,305
8,830,370,569

465,413,821

10,496,027,038
162,414,140
210,315
10,658,651,493
14,316,082,570

82,224,980

Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities

9,295,784,390

14,398,307,550

Net cash flows from investing activities

2,994,344,915

(3,739,656,057)

=, CEEHNAERASENWHINE

3. Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

(39,204,872)

(13,625,436)

M, MERMESNIEEM /(B ) 8

4. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

2,784,861,954
3,351,725,733

(1,876,626,011)
5,008,351,744

. ERUESRASENYREA

5. Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36

6,136,5687,687

3,351,725,733

60 133

The notes on pages 60 to 133 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statements (Continued)
2012 For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

e BiER 2012 £ & 2011 £ &

Supplementary information Notes 5 2012 2011

1, BERIEEATAZLEFINIERE: 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:

Net profit 214,687,727 94,509,383
Impairment losses 24,716,124 5,379,210
Fixed assets depreciation 12,159,168 9,233,963
Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 7,831,474 4,981,790
Amortisation for long term deferred expenses 11,475,016 6,623,518
/ Losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets 81,103 5,704,784
/ (Gains)/losses from changes in fair value (40,820,906) 186,583,766
Interest received from bond investments and investment income (225,942,351) (204,780,078)
Foreign exchange losses 39,015,303 26,027,592
Changes in deferred tax assets/liabilities 2,952,813 (16,934,972)
/ Decrease/(increase) in operating receivables 751,261,996 (10,348,089,043)
/ (Decrease)/increase in operating payables (967,595,556) 12,107,415,569
Net cash flows from operating activities (170,278,089) 1,876,655,482
2. BERMEENWETHER: 2. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand at end of year 36 14,334,388 8,256,622
Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year 8,256,622 6,179,239
Add: Cash equivalents at end of year 36 6,122,253,299  3,343,469,111
Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year 3,343,469,111 5,222,172,505
/ Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,784,861,954 (1,876,626,011)

60 133
The notes on pages 60 to 133 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements Of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

el g N RAELT BRAR —HRRES Ko EAE Ait
Paid-up Capital Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserves  reserves reserves earnings
2011 12 31 Balance as at 31 December 2011 3,000,000,000 271,974 26,667,896 304,607,460 226,158,376  3,557,705,706
Movements during the year - 4,121,810 21,458,773 126,249,237 66,879,717 218,709,637
(i) Net profit - - - - 214,587,727 214,587,727
(i) Other comprehensive income - 4,121,810 - - 4,121,810
1 1. Net change in fair value of - 5,495,747 - - 5,495,747
available-for-sale financial assets
2 2. Income tax impact recognised - (1,373,937) - - (1,373,937)
directly in equity
Total comprehensive income - 4,121,810 - - 214,587,727 218,709,537
(iii) Profit appropriation - - 21,458,773 126,249,237  (147,708,010) -
1 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - 21,458,773 - (21,458,773) -
2 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - 126,249,237 (126,249,237) -
2012 12 31 Balance as at 31 December 2012 3,000,000,000 4,393,784 48,126,669 430,856,697 293,038,093  3,776,415,243
RKAE AR BRAR —RRRAES  RARHE ait
Paid-up Capital Surplus General Retained Total
capital reserves  reserves reserves earnings
2010 12 31 Balance as at 31 December 2010 3,000,000,000 (14,826,623) 17,216,958 202,536,188 243,171,203  3,448,097,726
Movements during the year - 15,098,597 9,450,938 102,071,272 (17,012,827) 109,607,980
(i) Net profit - - - 94,509,383 94,509,383
(i) Other comprehensive income - 15,098,597 - - 15,098,597
1 1. Net change in fair value of - 20,131,463 - - 20,131,463
available-for-sale financial assets
2 2. Income tax impact recognised - (5,032,866) - (5,032,866)
directly in equity
Total comprehensive income - 15,098,597 - 94,509,383 109, 607,980
(iii) Profit appropriation - - 9,450,938 102,071,272 (111,522,210) -
1 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - 9,450,938 - (9,450,938) -
2 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - 102,071,272 (102,071,272) -
2011 12 31 Balance as at 31 December 2011 3,000,000,000 271,974 26,667,896 304,607,460 226,158,376  3,557,705,706
60 133

The notes on pages 60 to 133 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes To Financial Statements

2012 For the year ended 31 December 2012

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
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2007 4

2008 1

2006

(1) Corporate information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (“The Bank” or “UOB (China)”)
is a wholly-owned foreign-funded bank established in Shanghai,
P.R.China, by United Overseas Bank Ltd. (“UOB”).

In accordance with the Regulation of the People’s Republic
of China on the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the
“Regulation”), and the Detailed Rules on the Implementation
of Regulation of the People’s Republic of China on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the “Implementation”),
China Banking Regulatory Committee (“CBRC”) approved on
5 April 2007 to prepare the setting up of its wholly-owned
subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai and to convert its
branches in mainland of People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
to UOB (China) Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen
Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Chengdu Branch, Xiamen Branch,
Shenyang Branch and Jing’an sub-branch (collectively known
as the “Former PRC Branches”) respectively.

The Bank obtained the license for conducting financial transaction
from the CBRC (Institution Code: BO308H131000001), and obtained
its business license (Registered Number: 310000400553992 Shi Ju)
from State Administration for Industry and Commerce of the People’s
Republic of China. The registered address is Unit 105, 2F, 3F, 111
Dongyuan Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai. The registered capital
of the Bank is RMB 3 billion equivalents.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an unlimited
operating period. The business scope of the Bank are Renminbi
and foreign currency businesses as approved by relevant regulatory
authorities. The date of business conversion from former PRC
branches to UOB (China) was on 2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2012, besides the Head Office incorporated
in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 9 branches and 3 sub-branches
respectively in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou,
Chengdu, Xiamen, Shenyang, Tianjin and Hangzhou.

(2) Preparation basis of the financial
statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic
Standard and 38 specific standards issued in February 2006,
and the implementation guidance, interpretations and other
relevant provisions issued subsequently by the Ministry of Finance
of People’s Republic of China (MOF). (collectively referred to as
“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.
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(3) Compliance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position of the
Bank as of 31 December 2012 and the results of the operations
and the cash flows for the year then ended.

(4) Significant accounting policies and
estimates

1. Accounting year
The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31
December of each calendar year.

2. Functional currency

Both the reporting currency and the presentation currency for
financial statements are the Renminbi (“RMB”). All amounts are
stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

3. Basis of accounting and principles for measurement
The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on an accrual
basis under the historical cost as the basis of measurement,
except for derivative financial instruments, the financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value with changes
recorded in profit and loss, and available-for-sale financial assets.
Subsequently, if the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions
should be recognised in accordance with relevant standards.

4. Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the reporting
currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the respective
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
date. Subsequent to initial recognition, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items or on translation of monetary items at balance sheet date are
recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary items measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the initial transactions; Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates when the fair value is determined, the exchange
difference thus resulted should be recognised in the income statement
or other comprehensive income of the current period.

5. Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as the follows: Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss; Held-to-maturity investment; Loans
and receivables and Available-for-sale financial assets. Financial
assets are initially recognised at their fair value. For financial assets
at fair value through profit and loss, the related transaction costs
are directly charged to income statement of the current period.
Transaction costs relating to financial assets of other categories are
included in the amount initially recognised.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LTD. 61



UARMETEBREHIT AN LGB ESME

(i)

(i)

()

FEEIERE

62 RERT (HE ) FRAF

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
which are either classified as held for trading or designated by the
Bank at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they meet any
of the following: 1) acquired for the purpose of sale in the short
term; 2) part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that
are collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently managed this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; 3) derivatives unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. For such kind of financial assets, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All realised or
unrealised gains or losses on these financial assets are recognised
in the income statement of the current period.

Financial assets/liabilities are designated as fair value through profit
and loss only if they meet any of the following criteria:

(i) The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in recognition or measurement of gain or loss
arising from the difference of measurement basis of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

(i) In accordance with documented risk management or
investment strategy, this financial assets portfolio are managed,
and evaluated at fair value and reported on that basis to key
management personnel.

(i) The financial instrument contains one or several embedded
derivatives, unless the embedded derivatives do not
significantly modify the cash flow of the mixed instrument or it
is clear that they would not be separately recorded.

(iv) The financial instrument contains an embedded instrument,
which need to be separated but is unable to be measured
separately at initial recognition or subsequent measurement at
each subsequent balance sheet dates.

Held-to-maturity Investment

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity investments
when the Bank has the positive intention and ability to hold the
assets till maturity. After initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less any allowance for impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
held-to-maturity financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process. The Bank shall not classify
any financial assets as held-to-maturity if the Bank has, during the
current financial year or during the two preceding financial years, sold
or reclassified more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
investments before maturity (more than insignificant in relation to the
total amount of held-to-maturity investments), any remaining held-
to-maturity investments are reclassified as available-for-sale financial
assets except for:
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(1) Sales that are so close to maturity (i.e.: three months before
maturity date) that changes in the market interest rate would not
have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

(2) Sales that occur after the Bank has collected substantially all
of the financial asset’s original principal through scheduled
payments or prepayments; or

(8) Sales that are attributable to an isolated event that is beyond
the Bank’s control, is non-recurring, and could not have been
reasonably anticipated by the Bank.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
gains or losses arising from derecognition, impairment or
amortisation are recognised in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets which are designated as such or are not classified in any of
the three preceding categories. After initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income earned during the holding period is accrued using
the effective interest rate method and recognised to the income
statement as interest rate income. Changes in fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets except for the impairment and exchange
gain or loss are recognised as a separate component of equity until
the financial asset is derecognised at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously reported in equity are included in the
income statement.

6. Impairment of financial assets

The carrying value of financial assets other than financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that
it is impaired as a result of one or more events (“impairment
events”). The impairment events are referred to those occurring
after the initial recognition of the assets, which have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets and can
be reliably estimated by the Bank. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers are
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as deterioration of the situation in arrears
or sudden change of economic conditions, which may lead to the
debtors’ failing to fulfill the responsibility of repayment.
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on such
financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate, taking into account the value of any related collateral.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

Future cash flows of a group of financial assets that are collectively
assessed for impairment are estimated on the basis of historical
loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics.
The historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data, to reflect the effects of current conditions not
affecting the period of historical experience and to eliminate the
impact of historical conditions that do not exist currently. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash
flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be attributed objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss shall be reversed. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the assets does
not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If objective evidence shows that the financial assets carried at cost
are impaired, the difference between the present value discounted
at the prevailing rate of return of similar financial assets and the
book value of the financial asset are provided as an impairment loss
in the income statement. The impairment loss recognised cannot
be reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss for available-
for-sale financial assets has been incurred, the cumulative loss,
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net off
any recovered principals and amortised amount) and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is reversed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement.
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Debt instruments classified as available-for-sale with impairment
loss recognised, if, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss, the
previously impaired loss is reversed through the income statement.
Reversal of impairment loss of equity instruments classified as
available-for-sale is not recogonised in the income statement.

7. Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and those designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition. Gains and losses from
changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are measured at the fair value on
initial recognition. For financial guarantee contracts that are not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of, the
amount determined in accordance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No. 13 -Contingencies, and the amount
initially recognised less the cumulative amortisation determined
according to the principles of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 14 - Revenues.

Other financial liabilities

Except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
financial guarantee contracts, deposits and other financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

8. Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial asset

A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following
conditions is met:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired; or

(i) the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset; or has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, but has transferred control over the asset.
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Where the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the financial asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the
Bank’s continuing involvement of the financial asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Bank could be required to repay.

Financial liability

The financial liabilities are derecognised when the responsibilities
over them have been discharged, cancelled, or expires. If the
original financial liabilities are replaced with substantively different
terms in essence by the same creditor, or the provisions of the
contract are substantively modified in its nature, such replacement
or modifications are treated as derecognition of original liabilities
and recognition of new liabilities, with the difference recorded in the
income statement.

9. Derivatives and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value of the contract
date and are subsequently measured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated
separately as derivatives when their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
hybrid instrument is not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with the
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective economic
hedges under the Bank's risk management positions, do not qualify
for hedge accounting and are therefore treated as derivatives held
for trading with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in the income statement.

10. Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
Assets sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future
date (“repos”) are not derecognised from the balance sheet.
The corresponding cash received, including accrued interest, is
recognised on the balance sheet as a “repurchase agreement”,
reflecting its economic substance as a loan to the Bank. The
difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as an
interest expense and is accrued over the life of the agreement using
the effective interest method.

Conversely, assets purchased under agreements to resell at a
specified future date (“reverse repos”) are not recognised on the
balance sheet. The corresponding cash paid, including accrued
interest, is recognised on the balance sheet as a “reverse
repurchase agreement”. The difference between the purchase and
resale prices is treated as an interest income and is accrued over
the life of the agreement using the effective interest method.
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11. Precious metal

Precious metal comprise gold. Precious metal acquired by
the Bank for trading purposes are initially and subsequently
measured at fair value and subsequent changes in fair value are
recorded in income statement.

12. Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure for the construction, including all necessary
expenditure and other related expenses incurred during the
construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets or other
long term assets when the asset is ready for its intended use.

13. Fixed assets and accumulated depreciation
Recognition of fixed assets

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the Bank, and
the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure can be recognised in the cost of fixed
assets when the recognition criteria set above is met, and the
replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised. Otherwise,
such expenditure is normally charged to the income statement in
the period when it is incurred.

Valuation and depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost and presented at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
impairment. The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, relevant taxes and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use, such as delivery and handling costs, installation costs
and other surcharge.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis.
And the respective estimated useful lives, estimated residual values
and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets are set by the Bank
considering the nature and usage of fixed assets.

ERFm BitEkER FEHIEE

Estimated useful lives Estimated residual value Annual depreciation rate

Properties and buildings 50 - 2%
Office equipment and computers 5 - 20%
Motor vehicles 5 - 20%

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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14. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without
physical substance owned or controlled by the Bank. The intangible
assets can be recognised only when the economic benefits related
to intangible assets are likely to flow into the Bank, and the cost of
intangible assets can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and the useful life is
determined according to the economic useful lives; those intangible
assets with unforeseeable economic lives can be classified as
intangible assets with infinite useful lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software with a
10-year useful life.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation is
charged to income statement over the assets' estimated economic
lives using methods that best reflect the pattern of economic benefits;
or on a straight-line basis when the pattern of economic benefits
realisation cannot be reliably determined. For the intangible assets
with infinite useful lives, no amortisazion is made.

The useful life and amortisation method for intangible assets with
finite useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with
proper adjustments made by the Bank when necessary.

15. Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses refer to the expenses incurred with
an amortisation period of more than one year (not including one
year), mainly including rental fee and leasehold improvements.

Rental fee of the operating lease of fixed assets is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease contract. Other
long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lower period of lease period or useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged to
income statement if the expenditure does not bring benefits to
subsequent accounting periods.

16. Impairment of assets
The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for
financial assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an asset is
impaired at each balance sheet date. If any such indication exists,
the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount
and carries out impairment test. For those assets with infinite useful
lives, regardless of whether the impairment indications exist, the
impairment test is made at least annually.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of estimated future discounted
cash flows, which is determined on an individual basis.
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If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in income
statement and the carrying value of the asset reduced by the
amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be reversed in a
subsequent period.

17. Recognition of income and expense

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income and expense

Interest income or expense are determined using the effective
interest method, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument and includes any fees
or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument
and are an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future
credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates of payments
or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on
original effective interest rate and the change in carrying amount is
recorded as an interest income or expense.

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognised when the services are
rendered and the proceeds can be reasonably estimated.

18. Income tax
Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at
the balance sheet date. The taxable income is calculated at the
accounting results for the year as adjusted in accordance with
relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with
relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes
at the balance sheet date.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except: (i) where the deferred tax
assets arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
income or deductible loss; and (i) in respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

19. Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other short
term employee benefits are accrued in the period in which services
have been rendered by the employees of the Bank.

Defined contribution plans

According to relevant laws and regulations of Mainland China,
the Bank is required to make contributions to several social
security schemes separately administered by the local government
authorities. The contribution is recognised to income statement of
that period.



20. MEE MY ERE 20. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due from central
banks, amounts due from banks and other financial institutions,
reverse repurchase agreements maturing within three months, and
short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, and which are subject to an insignificant

21. XBFH risk of changes in value, which have an original maturity date within
three months.

21. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,

directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise

significant influence over the other party. Parties are also
22. TV E considered to be related if they are subject to common control

or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do not
23. BEHE constitute related parties.

22. Fiduciary activities
Where the Bank acts in a fiduciary capacity such as nominee,
custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together with related
undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded from
the financial statements.

24. AARR 23. Operating leases
Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as finance
leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Bank mainly recorded operating leases as a lessee. Rental
payments are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

24. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but disclosed in
the notes to financial statements. In case the condition changes,
which led to the outflow of economic resources is probable,
provision will be made.
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25. Accrued liability

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as accrued
liability when all of the following conditions are satisfied (except for
contingent liability recognised in a business combination):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(i) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and

(iiiy the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The accrued liability is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation. Factors
pertaining to a contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money are taken into account as a whole in reaching the
best estimate. The Bank reviews the carrying amount of a provision
at the balance sheet date. The carrying amount of a provision will
be adjusted when there is clear evidence that the amount does not
reflect the current best estimate.

26. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset only when the
Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and both parties of the transaction intend to settle on a
net basis.

27. Significant accounting judgment and estimates
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has made judgments and assumptions of the effects
of uncertain future events on the financial statements. The use of
judgments and key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
period.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

The Bank determines periodically whether there is any objective
evidence that impairment losses on loans and advances have
occurred. If any such evidence exists, the Bank assesses the
amount of impairment losses. The amount of impairment losses is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows. Assessing the amount
of impairment losses involving significant judgement on whether
the objective evidence for impairment exists and also significant
estimates when determining the present value of the expected
future cash flows.
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Income tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Bank to estimate
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Bank carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and makes tax provisions accordingly. In
addition, deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. This requires
significant estimation on the tax treatments of certain transactions
and also significant assessment on the probability that adequate
future taxable profits will be available for the deferred tax assets to
be recovered.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with active
markets are determined based on the market prices. For financial
instruments with no active markets, fair value are established
using valuation techniques such as making reference to
recent transactions or other comparable financial instruments,
discounted cash flow method and option pricing models. To the
extent practicable, valuation technique makes maximum use of
market inputs. However, where market inputs are not available,
management needs to make estimates on areas such as credit risk
(both own and counterparty’s), volatility and correlation. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments.

Classification of investment

Significant management judgment is required in evaluating the
classification of investments, since different classification will result
in different accounting treatments and financial positions of the
Bank. If improper judement on the classification of investment
is noticed after the balance sheet date, the Bank may need to
reclassify the whole investment portfolio.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The management of the Bank has assessed and made
judgments on the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial instruments for the transferred
transactions entered into, and make relevant accounting
treatments accordingly.
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(5) Notes to financial statements

1. Cash and balances with central banks

31-12-2012 31-12-2011

Cash on hand 14,334,388 8,256,622

- Statutory deposit reserve with the central banks - RMB 4,014,507,613 3,719,753,888
- Statutory deposit reserve with the central banks - foreign currency 82,129,706 55,549,552
Other deposits with central banks 757,949,246 701,546,016

Total 4,868,920,953 4,485,106,078

In accordance with relevant regulations issued by the People’s Bank of
China (“PBOC”), the Bank should place a statutory deposit reserve fund

5 18 with the PBOC. The required statutory deposit reserve ratios set by the
2011 19% PBOC is 5 per cent of the balance of customer deposits denominated
in foreign currencies at the end of last month, and 18 per cent (2011:
19 per cent) of the balance of customer deposits denominated in RMB
each 10 calendar days of the month respectively.
2. T R Ak FRIR 2. Due from banks
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Due from domestic banks 5,851,245,748 5,262,507,753
Due from foreign banks 64,474,137 73,468,701
Sub-total 5,915,719,885 5,335,976,454
()] Less: Impairment provisions for due from banks (Note1) (398,098) (979,602)
Net amount of due from banks 5,915,321,787 5,334,996,852
1 [2010]45 Note1: Impairment provisions for due from banks represented the
country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45 ”
Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and
Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk Management of the Banking
Financial Institutions” issued by CBRC.
3. IFHESE 3. Placements with banks and other financial institutions
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Net amount of placements with domestic banks and other financial 3,458,240,679 3,453,454,659
institutions

4. R HrETE B EER T SRR 0 SR~

4. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Bond investments:
Central bank bills and government bonds 49,497,700 500,274,580
Bonds issued by banks 198,899,000 147,381,000
Bonds issued by policy banks 288,150,390 355,001,560
Sub-total 536,547,090 1,002,657,140
Rediscounted bills 97,221,965 -
Total 633,769,055 1,002,657,140
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5. Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which is derived
from the value of another “underlying” financial instrument, an
index or some other variables. Typically, an “underlying” financial
instrument is a share, commodity or bond price, an index value or
an exchange or interest rate. The Bank uses derivative instruments
such as forwards, futures, swaps and options.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount of
underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative is based.
It indicates the unsettled volume of business transaction at the
balance sheet date. The amount of underlying asset reflects the risk
exposure of derivative at the end of accounting period other than
fair value.

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged,
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties in

an arm’s length transaction.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative
instruments are as follows:

31-12-2012
RERFPELTHELEH ARINE
Notional amounts by remaining life Fair values
31AR KROIZERE:3 15254 &it A= ffx
Within three Over three months Over one year but Total Assets Liabilities
months but within one year within five years
SMCATETA: Foreign exchange contracts:
Forwards 1,279,495,037 1,637,653,745 12,671,000 2,929,619,782 18,849,852 17,649,038
Swaps 11,420,829,306 4,756,881,267 38,971,900 16,216,682,473 64,032,030 69,313,310
Options 1,444,513,546 1,5696,881,395 - 3,041,394,941 30,518,950 41,770,167
Sub-total 14,144,837,889 7,991,316,407 51,542,900 22,187,697,196 113,400,832 128,632,515
FEfTETA: Interest rate contracts:
Swaps 7,370,817,119 14,627,931,606 19,231,260,000 41,130,008,725 144,318,326 138,516,181
Options 4,746,005,087 41,427,574,021 - 46,173,579,108 - -
Sub-total 12,116,822,206 55,955,505,627 19,231,260,000 87,303,587,833 144,318,326 138,516,181
AmMtEESNTIA:  Commodity contracts:
Swaps 178,202,626 237,523,526 110,401,267 526,127,419 4,411,139 5,994,233
Options - - 29,711,084 29,711,084 455,732 455,732
Sub-total 178,202,626 237,528,626 140,112,351 555,838,503 4,866,871 6,449,965
BREMEEWIA:  Equity contracts:
Swaps 1,044,454,429 3,164,466,334 2,330,218,126 6,539,138,889 110,916,673 130,147,428
Options 437,581,785 70,186,121 66,805,192 574,573,098 6,804,806 6,804,806
Sub-total 1,482,036,214 3,234,652,455 2,397,023,318 7,113,711,987 117,721,479 136,952,234
Precious metal derivatives 199,720,816 - - 199,720,816 254,686 74,609
Total 28,121,619,751 67,418,998,015 21,819,938,569 117,360,556,335 380,562,194 410,625,504
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31-12-2011

ERIRFPESTNELEH NRINME
Notional amounts by remaining life Fair values
3MAR RO E-RE:3 14535 4F &it "= R
Within three Over three months Over one year but Total Assets Liabilities
months but within one year within five years
SMCATETA: Foreign exchange contracts:
Forwards 1,176,956,165 1,594,135,169 398,543,171 3,169,634,505 14,498,814 10,595,829
Swaps 10,056,246,818 4,706,421,969 63,009,000 14,825,677,787 46,829,291 104,320,986
Options 642,686,200 15,235,965 5,975,230 663,897,395 2,543,087 3,347,644
Sub-total 11,875,889,183 6,315,793,103 467,527,401 18,659,209,687 63,871,192 118,264,459
FEfTETAR: Interest rate contracts:
Swaps 3,053,072,000 8,904,915,286 12,281,402,864 24,239,390,150 143,341,262 141,572,569
Options 1,054,840,660 201,888,738 - 1,256,729,398 - -
Sub-total 4,107,912,660 9,106,804,024 12,281,402,864 25,496,119,548 143,341,262 141,572,569
BRMEEHNTIA:  Commodity contracts:
Swaps 36,567,947 86,931,055 80,488,134 203,987,136 3,828,193 4,762,044
Options - 49,057,584 8,730,869 57,788,453 569,104 559,104
Sub-total 36,567,947 135,988,639 89,219,003 261,775,589 4,387,297 5,321,148
BEMEEMIA:  Equity contracts:
Swaps 72,908,905 408,972,076 1,987,005,531 2,463,886,512 54,492,431 65,417,075
Options 1,979,621,474 26,437,887 50,592,036 2,056,551,397 1,461,831 1,461,831
Sub-total 2,052,430,379 430,409,963 2,037,597,567 4,520,437,909 55,954,262 66,878,906
REREMTETH: Precious metal derivatives: 196,114,257 - - 196,114,257 837,831 7,804,736
Total 18,268,914,426 15,988,995,729 14,875,746,835 49,133,656,990 268,391,844 339,841,818
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6. Interest receivables

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Interest receivable on bond 52,178,521 102,142,865
Interest receivable on loan 95,116,856 71,740,651
Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bond - 5,028,775
Interest receivable from banks and others 31,347,379 87,309,395
Total 178,642,756 266,221,686

7. K E R
7.1 A ANFfel 537

7. Loans and advances to customers

7.1 Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
individual and corporate

31-12-2012

31-12-2011

A NG

fE Al YRR

Individual loans and advances:
Mortgages

Others

Sub-total

Corporate loans and advances:
Loans

Trust receipts

Discounted bills

Others

Sub-total

Total

Less: Loan impairment provisions

Net value of loans and advances

3,315,964,800
12,605,270

3,328,570,070

10,864,330,924
72,854,907
723,940,982
226,605,013
11,887,731,826
15,216,301,896
(299,663,677)

14,916,638,219

2,873,009,453
13,342,782

2,886,352,235

10,385,528,605
54,272,133
148,183,965
223,089,179
10,811,023,882
13,697,376,117
(274,555,618)

13,422,820,499
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7.2 Distribution of loans and advances to customers by

industry
31-12-2012

TR R E 4]

Amount Rate
Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 477,697,291 3%
Mining 50,000,000 -
Manufacturing 4,920,087,214 32%
Electricity, gas and water supply 162,159,954 1%
Construction 261,193,575 2%
Transportation, storage and post 116,531,146 1%
Telecommunication, computer service and software 164,843,547 1%
Wholesale and retail 1,614,551,327 1%
Accommodation and catering 455,182,615 3%
Real estate 3,211,776,502 21%
Leasing and commercial services 318,596,958 2%
Scientific research, technical services and geologic perambulation 25,394,824 -
Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration 17,500,000 -
Resident services and other services 90,260,197 1%
Health, social security and social welfare 1,956,676 -
Consumer credit 3,328,570,070 22%
Total amount of loans and advances 15,216,301,896 100%
Less: Loan impairment provisions (299,663,677)
Net value of loans and advances 14,916,638,219
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7.2 BTSSR 7.2 Distribution of loans and advances to customers by

industry
31-12-2011

TR R E tefl

Amount Rate
Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 407,113,962 3%
Mining - -
Manufacturing 4,604,592,343 34%
Electricity, gas and water supply 219,918,759 2%
Construction 128,098,142 1%
Transportation, storage and post 47,727,469 -
Telecommunication, computer service and software 150,000,000 1%
Wholesale and retail 1,498,541,325 1%
Accommodation and catering 182,511,646 1%
Real estate 3,298,134,233 24%
Leasing and commercial services 162,687,908 1%
Scientific research, technical services and geologic perambulation 14,700,000 -
Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration - -
Resident services and other services 95,041,625 1%
Health, social security and social welfare 1,961,470 -
Consumer credit 2,886,352,235 21%
Total amount of loans and advances 13,697,376,117 100%
Less: Loan impairment provisions (274,555,618)
Net value of loans and advances 13,422,820,499
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7.3 Distribution of loans and advances to customers by

geographical region

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
North-east 690,518,441 418,416,229
East 7,836,984,229 7,095,427,606
North 3,698,501,599 3,014,549,002
Central 201,972,044 128,787,017
South 1,284,311,056 1,911,756,967
South-west 1,475,108,078 1,093,593,995
North-west 30,000,000 -
Overseas 98,911,449 34,845,301

Total amount of loans and advances
Less: Loan impairment provisions

Net value of loans and advances

15,216,301,896
(299,663,677)
14,916,638,219

18,697,376,117
(274,555,618)
13,422,820,499

74 BHERFXSH

7.4 Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral

or guarantee

31-12-2012

31-12-2011

Unsecured loans

Guaranteed loans

Loans with collateral

Secured by mortgages

Secured by pledges

Total amount of loans and advances
Less: Loan impairment provisions

Net value of loans and advances

1,704,367,276
3,698,666,890
9,813,267,730
6,994,812,659
2,818,455,071
15,216,301,896
(299,663,677)

14,916,638,219

1,317,959,621
3,621,218,995
8,758,197,501
7,187,983,034
1,670,214,467
13,697,376,117
(274,555,618)

13,422,820,499
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7.5 Overdue loan

31-12-2012

BE1REZEOX BHNXRE1E(E1F) BHEI1EEIE(E3HF) EH 3 FEE &it
Overdue 1day Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1 year to Overdue Total

to 90 days 1 year (inclusive) 3 years (inclusive) 3 years

above
Guaranteed loans 685,109 - 10,280,000 - 10,965,109
Loan with collaterals 507,808 30,361,436 - 67,241,033 98,110,277

Of which:
Secured by mortgages 507,808 30,361,436 - 67,241,033 98,110,277
Secured by pledges - - - - -
Total 1,192,917 30,361,436 10,280,000 67,241,033 109,075,386
31-12-2011

B RZEQX BHANXEIE(A15F) BPI1FEIFE(R3F) HH 3 E L &it
Overdue 1day Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1 year to Overdue Total

to 90 days 1 year (inclusive) 3 years (inclusive) 3 years

above
Guaranteed loans 3,350,000 10,280,000 - - 13,630,000
Loan with collaterals 100,225,931 - 60,265,399 12,601,800 173,093,130

Of which:

Secured by mortgages 100,225,931 - 60,265,399 12,601,800 173,093,130
Secured by pledges - - - - -
Total 103,575,931 10,280,000 60,265,399 12,601,800 186,723,130

Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related interests
are overdue for one day or above.
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7.6 REIRLES (HER, 14) 7.6 Loan impairment provisions (Note 5.14)

2012
BN HE ait
Individual Collective Total
Opening balance 86,734,578 187,821,040 274,555,618
Charge for the year 1,066,832 26,815,981 27,882,813
Write-off for the year - - _
Write back for the year (2,585,185) R (2,585,185)
Exchange rate difference (76,735) (112,834) (189,569)
Closing balance 85,139,490 214,524,187 299,663,677
2011
BIR HE ait
Individual Collective Total
Opening balance 137,646,841 147,978,323 285,625,164
Charge for the year (38,729,877) 43,129,485 4,399,608
Write-off for the year (8,563,310) - (8,563,310)
Write back for the year - , ,
Exchange rate difference (3,619,076) (3,286,768) (6,905,844)
Closing balance 86,734,578 187,821,040 274,555,618
8. Mt EERME " 8. Available-for-sale financial assets
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
RERE: Bond investments:
Central bank bills and government bonds 2,063,453,050 3,084,391,490
Bonds issued by banks 496,418,450 636,803,012
Corporate bonds 483,686,580 1,441,597,960
Bonds issued by policy banks 381,892,230 1,151,087,151
Sub-total 3,425,450,310 6,313,879,613
Rediscounted bills 74,484,178 -
Total 3,499,934,488 6,313,879,613
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9. TANBEEEREFT 9. Reverse repurchase financial assets

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Classified by counter-party:
Other banks - 476,400,000
Classified by pledge:
Bonds - 476,400,000
10. EIE &~ 10. Fixed assets
BER EMig & DIV Ait
e8] PP
Properties and Motor vehicles  Office equipment Total
2012 buildings and computers
EEE Cost or valuation:
2012 1 1 At 1 January 2012 4,798,060 2,101,544 63,797,704 70,697,308
Additions - - 6,987,164 6,987,164
Transfer from construction in progress
( 13.2) (Note 5. 13.2) - - 1,025,243 1,025,243
Disposals - (407,403) (1,172,760) (1,580,163)
2012 12 31 At 31 December 2012 4,798,060 1,694,141 70,637,351 77,129,652
Kit#riH: Accumulated depreciation:
2012 1 1 At 1 January 2012 1,444,313 1,045,024 22,509,927 24,999,264
Additions 79,954 338,841 11,740,373 12,159,168
Disposals - (407,403) (1,036,670) (1,444,073)
2012 12 31 At 31 December 2012 1,624,267 976,462 33,213,630 35,714,359
ElE R =g 1{E : Net book value:
2012 12 3 At 31 December 2012 3,273,793 717,679 37,423,721 41,415,193
BEERFREREE: (HiER.14) Impairment provision: (Note 5.14)
2012 1 1 At 1 January 2012 692,573 - - 692,573
Disposals - - - -
2012 12 31 At 31 December 2012 692,573 - - 692,573
[E 7B B 7= 1550 : Net carrying amount:
2012 12 31 At 31 December 2012 2,681,220 717,679 37,423,721 40,722,620
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BERR B E DIV ait
25 FA B i% &
Properties and Motor vehicles ~ Office equipment Total
2011 buildings and computers
Efr: Cost or valuation:
2011 1 1 At 1 January 2011 4,798,060 3,818,420 45,551,813 54,168,293
Additions - 400,453 18,605,288 19,005,741
Transfer from construction in progress
13.2 (Note 5. 13.2) - - 2,935,589 2,935,589
Disposals - (2,117,329) (3,294,986) (5,412,315)
2011 12 31 At 31 December 2011 4,798,060 2,101,544 63,797,704 70,697,308
RitiFIH: Accumulated depreciation:
2011 1 1 At 1 January 2011 1,364,212 2,870,232 16,111,506 20,345,950
Additions 80,101 292,121 8,861,741 9,233,963
Disposals - (2,117,329) (2,463,320) (4,580,649)
2011 12 31 At 31 December 2011 1,444,313 1,045,024 22,509,927 24,999,264
Bl E R =5 E: Net book value:
2011 12 31 At 31 December 2011 3,353,747 1,056,520 41,287,777 45,698,044
BEERF=RBEEE: (HER.14) Impairment provision: (Note 5.14)
2011 1 1 At 1 January 2011 692,573 - - 692,573
Disposals - - - :
2011 12 31 At 31 December 2011 692,573 - - 692,573
ElE R F= 8 : Net carrying amount:
2011 12 31 At 31 December 2011 2,661,174 1,056,520 41,287,777 45,005,471
2012 12
As at 31 December 2012, details of fixed assets which were fully depreciated but still in use are as follows:
BER EEgE UIYNYSa ait
fesiky) R AR &
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles Office equipment Total
and computers
Original cost - - 8,163,065 8,163,065
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1. THEF~

11. Intangible assets

ks Software 2012 2011
R Cost or valuation:
Opening balance 62,999,360 44,519,470
Additions 13,148,375 715,517
13.2 Transfer from construction in progress (Note 5.13.2) 10,071,624 17,764,373
Closing balance 86,219,359 62,999,360
gt Accumulated amortisation:
Opening balance 13,483,254 8,501,464
Additions 7,831,474 4,981,790
Closing balance 21,314,728 13,483,254
TR R =R E R SR Net carrying amount:
Closing balance 64,904,631 49,516,106
12. BERGHET | (fAK) 12. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
2012
FXRE KEFANBE  REEETA FERRE
FiEEN
Opening balance Credited/ Credited/  Closing balance
(Charged) (Charged)
BIEFTBHR/ (k) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) to profit and loss to equity
Loan impairment provision 24,879,449 5,871,332 - 30,750,781
Impairment provisions for due from banks 244,900 (145,376) - 99,524
Fixed asset impairment provision 173,143 - - 173,143
Depreciation of the fixed asset 147,136 (507) - 146,629
Unrealised profit or loss on the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (1,321,351) 1,114,298 - (207,053)
Unrealised profit or loss on the available-
for-sale financial assets (90,657) - (1,373,937) (1,464,594)
Changes in fair value of derivatives 17,862,494 (10,346,665) - 7,515,829
Revaluation of option (1,616,949) (975,222) - (2,592,171)
Non-accrued interest 2,993,932 (21,722) - 2,972,210
Operating lease 218,988 20,692 - 239,680
Payroll payable 9,498,958 1,630,357 - 11,029,315
Total 52,990,043 (2,952,813) (1,373,937) 48,663,293
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2011

ENRE REFANRE AEEETA FERRE
PR &ENE
Opening balance Credited/ Credited/  Closing balance
(Charged) (Charged)
BIEMBEHES (k) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities to profit and loss to equit
quity
Loan impairment provision 53,948,373 (29,068,924) - 24,879,449
Impairment provisions for due from banks - 244,900 - 244,900
Fixed asset impairment provision 173,143 - - 173,143
Depreciation of the fixed asset 195,279 (48,143 - 147,136
Unrealised profit or loss on the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - (1,321,351) - (1,321,351)
Unrealised profit or loss on the available-
for-sale financial assets 4,942,209 - (5,032,866) (90,657)
Changes in fair value of derivatives (29,422,005) 47,284,499 - 17,862,494
Revaluation of option (2,001,961) 385,012 - (1,616,949)
Non-accrued interest 7,488,638 (4,494,706) - 2,993,932
Operating lease 198,296 20,692 - 218,988
Payroll payable 5,565,965 3,932,993 - 9,498,958
Total 41,087,937 16,934,972 (5,032,866) 52,990,043
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13. Hith#g 7=

13. Other assets

Bt i

Notes 31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Precious metal 53,375,200 -
Long-term deferred expenses 13.1 47,508,329 43,764,149
Construction in process 13.2 1,629,148 20,563,350
Other receivables 13.3 474,528,904 33,601,276
Total 576,941,581 97,928,775

13.1 KHASME A 18.1 Long-term deferred expenses
EJE HABEERF MR XN HEH Ait
2012 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
Opening balance 155,446 39,917,294 3,691,409 43,764,149
Additions - 5,698,356 - 5,698,356

Transfer from construction in

13.2 progress (Note 5.13.2) - 9,520,840 - 9,520,840
Disposals - - - R
Amortisation (10,756) (11,265,619) (198,641) (11,475,016)
Closing balance 144,690 43,870,871 3,492,768 47,508,329
L HANBEERMR X H HER Ait
2011 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
Opening balance 174,477 21,724,088 3,890,050 25,788,615
Additions - 6,908,892 - 6,908,892
st o ettt - - s
Disposals - (5,083,433) - (5,083,433)
Amortisation (19,031) (6,405,846) (198,641) (6,623,518)
Closing balance 155,446 39,917,294 3,691,409 43,764,149
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132%ERBTE

13.2 Construction in progress

2012 2011
Opening balance 20,563,350 5,235,145
Additions 1,683,505 58,801,760
10 Transfer to fixed assets (Note 5. 10) (1,025,243) (2,935,589)
11 Transfer to intangible assets (Note 5. 11) (10,071,624) (17,764,373)
13.1 Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 5. 13.1) (9,520,840) (22,773,593)
Net closing balance 1,629,148 20,563,350

13.3 HA IR 13.3 Other receivables
T Ageing 31-12-2012 31-12-2011
1 Within 1 year 458,072,172 18,230,493
1-2 1-2 years 2,503,713 12,123,138
2-3 2-3 years 11,272,074 2,641,245
3 More than 3 years 2,680,945 706,400
Total 474,528,904 33,601,276
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430,000,000

The other receivable contains pre-purchase trade deposit of

RMB 430,000,000.

The management of the Bank has assessed the recoverability of
other receivables on a regular basis and considered that no bad
debts provision is needed to be made for the balance as at 31

December 2012.



14. EFER{EES

14. Provision for impairment losses

EMREM AEHR/ (FE) 8 HH CERER ERFH
Opening balance Accrual/Reversal ~ Write off Exchange rate Closing balance
2012 difference
Impairment provisions for due 979,602 (581,504) - - 398,098
2 from banks (Note 5. 2)

Provision for loans 274,555,618 25,297,628 - (189,569) 299,663,677

7.6 (Note 5. 7.6)
Provision for fixed assets 692,573 - - - 692,573

10 (Note 5. 10)
Total 276,227,793 24,716,124 - (189,569) 300,754,348
EHRE AETRE 3] CEER FERRE
Opening balance Accrual Write off Exchange rate Closing balance

2011 difference
Impairment provisions for due - 979,602 - - 979,602
2 from banks (Note 5. 2)

Provision for loans 285,625,164 4,399,608 (8,563,310) (6,905,844) 274,555,618

7.6 (Note 5. 7.6)
Provision for fixed assets 692,573 - - - 692,573

10 (Note 5. 10)
Total 286,317,737 5,379,210 (8,563,310) (6,905,844) 276,227,793

15. [k & H th & R IR

15. Due to banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 2,113,389 2,097,679
Due to foreign banks 215,748,392 3,218,576,949
Total 217,861,781 3,220,674,628
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16. FEAREANE S

16. Placements from banks and other financial

institutions
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Placements from domestic banks 150,000,000 592,284,600
Placements from foreign banks 5,550,255,538 6,074,485,893

Total

5,700,255,538

6,666,770,493

17. R ER 17. Customer deposits
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
TR Current deposits:
Corporation 2,208,985,314 2,609,138,426
Individual 430,819,405 209,295,866
Sub-total 2,639,804,719 2,818,434,292
EHTFR Time deposits:
Corporation 16,769,410,589 15,306,003,006
Individual 4,635,475,121 2,981,469,696
Sub-total 21,304,885,710 18,287,472,702
Total 23,944,690,429 21,105,906,994
8,805,308,783 2011- Customer deposits include wealth management products
12-31 4,453,733,901 amounting to RMB 8,805,308,783 (RMB 4,453,733,901 as at

3,197,004,503
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6,017,714,896

2011-12-31

31 December 2011). These structured deposits are embedded
with derivatives which are mainly options, equity swap and
commodity swap. Among which there are RMB 6,017,714,896
(RMB 3,197,004,503 as at 31 December 2011) book value
derivatives which are considered not closely related to the
host contract. Consequently, the Bank separates them from
deposits and the fair value is recorded in derivatives.



18. RL {4 BR T

18. Payroll payables

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 40,354,600 35,079,345
Social insurance and Housing Fund 3,314,109 2,555,828
Labour union expenditure and staff education 448,553 360,660
Total 44,117,262 37,995,833
19. RBi3z i 8k 19. Tax payable

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Business tax and surcharges 15,426,698 16,617,671
Corporate income tax 1,604,190 12,963,909
Others 24,039,264 23,317,602
Total 41,070,162 52,899,182
The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the

respective tax rates for the current financial year are as follows:

5%
2008 1 1 Business tax — The Bank is subjected to a business
2008 tax rate of 5 per cent.

25% Corporate income tax - In accordance with the PRC Enterprise
25% Income Taxation Law, which has been

Withholding Individual
Income tax

implemented since 1 January 2008,
both domestic and foreign enterprises
are subjected to a corporate tax rate
of 25 per cent. The corporate income
tax rate adopted by the Bank for its
RMB and foreign currency business
has been amended to 25 per cent
since 1 January 2008.

— In accordance with the relevant

tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is
required to withhold individual income
tax on salaries paid to its employees.
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20. RE{FF1 8

20. Interest payables

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Interest payable to customer deposits 374,982,861 180,316,706
Interest payable to banks and others 2,348,222 65,805,599
Total 377,331,083 246,122,305
21. Hihfa{H 21. Other liabilities
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Settlement and clearing 25,688,691 4,093,861
Im IT system service fee 18,419,318 3,026,756
Others 26,787,255 34,331,191
Total 70,895,264 41,451,807
22. TPHEXE 22. Paid-up capital

2012 £ % 2011 &

2012 and 2011

ZEART %
RMB equivalent %
Share capital 3,000,000,000 100

1,801,419,082.35
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1,198,580,917.65

The paid-up capital was verified by the Certified Public Accountants
with capital verification report issued. RMB equivalent amounting
1,198,580,917.65 was injected by United Overseas Bank Ltd.,
in form of cash, and the balance was transferred from operating
capital of former branches in Mainland China.



23. BEAR 23. Capital reserves

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 5,858,378 362,631
Income tax impact recognised directly in equity (1,464,594) (90,657)
Total 4,393,784 271,974
24. BRAR 24. Surplus reserves
EVIRE RN EERD ERREH
Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
Statutory surplus reserve 26,667,896 21,458,773 - 48,126,669
20183 3 21 According to the Bank Law of the People's Republic of China and
10% the Bank’s Articles of Association, accompanied with resolution
50% passed by the board of directors on 21 March 2013, the Bank

has appropriated 10 per cent of its profit to the statutory surplus
reserve. The Bank should appropriate until the reserve balance
reaches 50 per cent of its registered capital or above.

After the statutory surplus reserve been appropriated, the Bank
may appropriate discretionary surplus reserve. Discretionary
surplus reserve can be used to compensate for the accumulated
losses of previous years or convert to capital upon approval. It has
been determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank that no
discretionary surplus reserve to be appropriated this year.

25. —RR R BS HE & 25. General reserves
[2012]20 According to the regulation Caidin [2012] No. 20 “Financial
1.5% instituition provision measurement Guideline”, the Bank is
2013 3 21 required to set aside a general reserves of at least 1.5 per cent
126,249,237 2012 12 of its total risk assets at year end from net profit. In accordance
31 430,856,697 of the Board of Directors resolution on 21 March 2013, general

reserves amounting RMB 126,249,237 was appropriated. As at
31 December 2012, total general reserves of the Bank is RMB

430,856,697.
FEXRE ARG AERD FERRE
Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
General reserves 304,607,460 126,249,237 - 430,856,697
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26. XS ELFIE

26. Retained earnings

2012 2011
Retained earnings brought forward 226,158,376 243,171,208
Net profit for the year 214,587,727 94,509,383
Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves 21,458,773 9,450,938
Less: Appropriation to general reserves 126,249,237 102,071,272
Closing balance of retained earnings 293,038,093 226,158,376

27. FI B BN

According to the Bank Law of the People's Republic of China
and the Articles of Association of the Bank, the profit of the
Bank can only be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfilling all
tax responsibilities, (2) compensating any accumulated losses, (3)
making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves, (4) making
appropriation to the general reserves, (5) making appropriation
to the discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios
of the general reserves and surplus reserves are decided by
the Bank's Board of Directors in compliance with the relevant
regulations.

The profit appropriation is decided by the Board of Directors of

the Bank, with reference to the operating performance, financial
positions, and other relevant factors.

27. Net interest income

2012 2011
2N Interest income:
Due from banks 283,380,689 186,925,710
Due from central banks 64,874,898 49,049,531
Loans and advances to customers 878,660,573 619, 845,432
Reverse repurchase bonds 10,465,899 53,305,359
Placement with banks and other financial institutions and others 129,918,662 137,424,382
Sub-total 1,367,300,621 1,046,550,414
FIEZH: Interest expense:
Due to banks and other financial institutions 31,470,287 30,965,249
Customer deposits 604,474,489 427,001,219
Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 105,700,981 127,025,056
Sub-total 741,645,757 584,991,524
LSS ON Net interest income 625,654,864 461,558,890
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28. FEEBERAESFBN 28. Net fees and commission income

2012 2011
FHEERBEWN: Fees and commission income:
Settlement and clearing fees 16,672,662 13,422,305
Agency brokerage fees 6,903,239 2,945,638
Credit commitment fees 4,285,370 4,162,699
Credit related income 31,163,004 20,873,816
Others 7,656,342 1,698,440
Sub-total 66,580,507 43,102,898
FHEHBERAETH: Fees and commission expense:
Fee expenses 9,841,087 8,924,447
Sub-total 9,841,087 8,924,447
FHEBRALEBRN Net fees and commission income 56,739,420 34,178,451
29. I H U = 29. Investment income
2012 2011
(Loss)/gain on disposal of held for trading bond investments (1,166,816) 3,627,852
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale bond investment 3,972,227 80,808
Bond Interest income 216,533,387 201,071,418
Total 219,338,798 204,780,078
30. ARMMETH S / (REK) 30. Gains/(losses) from changes in fair values
2012 2011
Held for trading financial assets (4,531,903) 5,285,405
Derivative financial instruments 45,287,551 (190,678,041)
Others 65,258 (1,191,130)
Total 40,820,906 (186,583,766)
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3. kHEREEE

31. General and administrative expenses

2012 2011
RTHA: Staff costs:
Salaries and bonuses 251,094,026 227,086,839
Defined contribution schemes 44,798,215 30,082,323
Other employee benefits 19,041,679 16,699,078
Sub-total 314,933,920 273,868,240
Depreciation 12,159,168 9,233,963
Amortisation 19,306,490 11,605,308
Other operating expenses 156,316,917 155,899,875
Total 502,716,495 450,607,386
32. AFEEEKRE 32. Impairment losses
2012 2011
Impairment losses for due from banks (581,504) 979,602
Impairment losses for loans 25,297,628 4,399,608
Total 24,716,124 5,379,210
33. Bkl 33. Non-operating income
2012 2011
Gain from the disposal of fixed assets 55,000 149,971
Fiscal subsidy 1,561,000 -
Others 3,522,596 700,393
Total 5,138,596 850,364
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34. Bl S

34. Non-operating expenses

2012 2011
Loss on the disposal of fixed assets 136,103 5,854,755
Fiscal subsidy refund - 2,190,000
Others 435,923 459,726
Total 572,026 8,504,481

35. ieFiEA 35. Income tax expenses

2012 2011
Income tax expenses for the current year 66,318,100 47,519,619
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 2,929,329 (1,888,886)
Deferred income tax expenses 2,952,813 (16,934,972)
Total 72,200,242 28,695,761

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax is as

follows:

2012 2011

Profit before tax 286,787,969 123,205,144

25 Tax charge on a tax rate at 25% 71,696,992 30,801,286
Adjustment in respect of prior periods 2,929,329 (1,888,886)

Interest income of government bonds (2,060,782) (1,154,073)

Non-deductible items 759,703 937,434

Unrecognised deductible deferred tax impact (1,125,000) -

Income tax expenses 72,200,242 28,695,761
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36. MERIMEFMHT

36. Cash and cash equivalent

31-12-2012

31-12-2011

Cash

Cash equivalent:

With original maturity less than three months

-Due from banks

-Placements with banks and other financial institutions
-Reverse repurchase financial assets

Other deposits with central banks-General deposit reserve
Sub-total

Total

14,334,388

3,922,154,885
1,442,149,168

757,949,246
6,122,253,299

6,136,587,687

8,256,622

1,484,9183,455
857,009,640
300,000,000
701,546,016
3,343,469,111

3,351,725,733

37. HihZ &k it

37. Other comprehensive income

2012 2011
Net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 5,495,747 20,131,463
Income tax impact recognised directly in equity (1,373,937) (5,032,866)
Total 4,121,810 15,098,597
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7. SEMRE
1. EBbER, BFRAMEK

(6) Segment information

1. Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

The Bank monitors its daily business operation according
to RMB business and foreign currency business separately.
Operating expenses and depreciation charge etc, which are
directly attributed to such business are allocated to that business
directly. Common operating expenses, are allocated between
the RMB book and foreign currency book in accordance with the
proportion of total interest income. Interest income and interest
expense are recorded separately in accordance to the currency.
Segment information of the Bank’s RMB business and foreign
currency business is as follows:

31-12-2012
ARME Sl & At
RMB Foreign Currency Total
Business Business
"= Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 4,780,986,103 87,934,850 4,868,920,953
Due from banks 5,544,965,490 370,356,297 5,915,321,787

Placements with financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Derivative financial assets

Interest receivables

Loans and advances to customers
Available-for-sale financial assets

Reverse repurchase financial assets

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

2,265,717,316

633,769,055

136,621,155
156,611,119
11,609,729,217

3,499,934,488

18,107,895
(2,692,778,036)

25,853,663,802

1,192,5623,363

243,941,039
22,031,637

3,406,909,002

40,722,620
64,904,631
30,555,398
3,269,719,617
8,729,598,454

3,458,240,679

633,769,055

380,562,194
178,642,756
14,916,638,219
3,499,934,488
40,722,620
64,904,631
48,663,293
576,941,581
34,5683,262,256
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31-12-2012

ARME Sl & &it
RMB Foreign Currency Total
Business Business
R Liabilities

Due to banks and other financial institutions 166,212,388 51,649,393 217,861,781

;I:t?tiz?sr?;s from banks and other financial 150,000,000 5.550,255.538 6.700.265.535

Derivative financial liabilities 133,126,996 277,498,508 410,625,504

Customer deposits 22,409,108,028 1,635,5682,401 23,944,690,429

Payroll payables - 44,117,262 44,117,262

Tax payables 29,470,393 11,599,759 41,070,152

Interest payables 365,098,417 12,232,666 377,331,083

Other liabilities 2,279,107 68,616,157 70,895,264

Total liabilities 283,255,295,329 7,551,5651,684 30,806,847,013

FrAEENE Equity

Paid-up capital 2,162,051,270 837,948,730 3,000,000,000

Capital reserves 4,393,784 - 4,393,784

Surplus reserves 23,713,625 24,413,044 48,126,669

General reserves 347,994,660 82,862,037 430,856,697

Retained earnings 60,215,134 232,822,959 293,038,093

Total equity 2,5698,368,473 1,178,046,770 3,776,415,243

Total liabilities and equity 25,853,663,802 8,729,698,454 34,5883,262,256
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31-12-2011

AR S Sl 55 Ait
RMB Foreign Currency Total
Business Business
&= Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 4,426,637,114 58,468,964 4,485,106,078
Due from banks 4,133,5625,060 1,201,471,792 5,334,996,852
Placements with financial institutions 2,937,644,384 515,810,275 3,453,454,659
Eirnlir;(;ial assets at fair value through profit 1,002,657.140 i 1,002,657.140
Derivative financial assets 140,700,552 127,691,292 268,391,844
Interest receivables 244,703,586 21,518,100 266,221,686
Loans and advances to customers 9,092,983,288 4,329,837,211 13,422,820,499
Available-for-sale financial assets 6,125,002,890 188,876,723 6,313,879,613
Reverse repurchase financial assets 476,400,000 - 476,400,000
Fixed assets 14,000 44,991,471 45,005,471
Intangible assets - 49,516,106 49,516,106
Deferred tax assets 10,601,068 42,388,975 52,990,043
Other assets (3,184,862,492) 3,282,791,267 97,928,775
Total assets 25,406,006,590 9,863,362,176 35,269,368,766
fufs Liabilities
Due to banks and other financial institutions 3,169,359,009 51,315,619 3,220,674,628
Placements from banks and other financial
institutions - 6,666,770,493 6,666,770,493
Derivative financial liabilities 140,436,018 199,405,800 339,841,818
Customer deposits 19,623,829,910 1,482,077,084 21,105,906,994
Payroll payables - 37,995,833 37,995,833
Tax payables 12,993,825 39,905,357 52,899,182
Interest payables 237,099,476 9,022,829 246,122,305
Other liabilities 1,320,599 40,131,208 41,451,807
Total liabilities 23,185,038,837 8,5626,624,223 31,711,663,060
FrE&ENEE Equity

Paid-up capital

Capital reserves

Surplus reserves
General reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

1,942,051,270
384,681
8,374,463
240,865,053
29,292,286
2,220,967,753

25,406,006,590

1,067,948,730
(112,707)
18,293,433
63,742,407
196,866,090
1,336,737,953

9,863,362,176

3,000,000,000
271,974
26,667,896
304,607,460
226,158,376
3,557,705,706

35,269,368,766
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2012

ARM S Sl & ait
RMB Foreign Currency Total
Business Business
— BB 1. Operating income

Interest income 1,137,758,903 229,541,718 1,367,300,621
Interest expense (668,716,063) (72,929,694) (741,645,757)
Net interest income 469,042,840 156,612,024 625,654,864
Fee and commission income 38,685,572 27,894,935 66,580,507
Fee and commission expense (7,823,643) (2,017,444) (9,841,087)
Net fee and commission income 30,861,929 25,877,491 56,739,420
Investment income 218,909,052 429,746 219,338,798
Gains on changes in fair value 2,673,321 38,147,585 40,820,906
Foreign exchange gains - (39,015,303) (39,015,303)
Other operating income (957,546) (31,978,325) (32,935,871)
Total operating income 720,529,596 150,073,218 870,602,814

= Bl 2. Operating expenses
Business tax and surcharges (50,860,302) (10,088,494) (60,948,796)
General and administrative expenses (430,865,402) (71,851,093) (502,716,495)
Impairment losses (87,207,344) 12,491,220 (24,716,124)
Total operating expenses (518,933,048) (69,448,367) (588,381,415)
=, BlFE 3. Operating profit 201,596,548 80,624,851 282,221,399
Add: Non-operating income - 5,138,596 5,138,596
Less: Non-operating expenses (226,839) (345,187) (5672,026)
M. RS 4. Profit before tax 201,369,709 85,418,260 286,787,969
Less: Income tax expense (47,978,092) (24,222,150) (72,200,242)
., &FE 5. Net profit 168,391,617 61,196,110 214,687,727
. HtpRE s 6. Other comprehensive income 4,121,810 - 4,121,810
t. GAEKESHR 7. Total comprehensive income 157,513,427 61,196,110 218,709,537
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2011

ARM S Sl & ait
RMB Foreign Currency Total
Business Business
—. BB 1. Operating income

Interest income 834,801,700 211,748,714 1,046,550,414
Interest expense (522,419,713) (62,571,811) (584,991,524)
Net interest income 312,381,987 149,176,903 461,558,890
Fee and commission income 24,884,846 18,218,052 43,102,898
Fee and commission expense (6,851,935) (2,072,512) (8,924,447)
Net fee and commission income 18,032,911 16,145,540 34,178,451
Investment income 201,980,122 2,799,956 204,780,078
Gains/( losses) on changes in fair value 1,825,633 (188,409,399) (186,583,7606)
Foreign exchange gains - 108,485,712 108,485,712
/ Other operating income/(expense) (6,293,279) 18,373,926 12,080,647
Total operating income 527,927,374 106,572,638 634,500,012

=, BlXd 2. Operating expenses
Business tax and surcharges (32,420,834) (15,233,321) (47,654,155)
General and administrative expenses (389,010,426) (61,596,960) (450,607,386)
Impairment losses (51,453,175) 46,073,965 (5,379,210)
Total operating expenses (472,884,435) (30,756,316) (503,640,751)
=, BlFE 3. Operating profit 55,042,939 75,816,322 130,859,261
Add: Non-operating income - 850,364 850,364
Less: Non-operating expenses (5,404,008) (3,100,473) (8,504,481)
M. FiE R 4. Profit before tax 49,638,931 73,566,213 123,205,144
Less: Income tax expense (13,712,943) (14,982,818) (28,695,761)
A, R 5. Net profit 35,925,988 58,583,395 94,509,383
AN Rt 6. Other comprehensive income 8,294,821 6,803,776 15,098,597
+. BEWESHM 7. Total comprehensive income 44,220,809 65,387,171 109,607,980
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2. HipfEE 2. Other information

(1) Bl ERISHITIZHWAN (1) Foreign trade income by different kinds of operation
2012 2011
Global Market and Investment Management 805,335,678 557,669,347
Institutional Financial Service 636,355,566 556,786,887
Retail Business 184,045,466 114,156,176
Others (8,647,052) (196,427)
Total 1,622,089,658 1,228,415,983
(2) hiBE S (2) Foreign trade income by geography

Foreign trade income is distributed to respective countries and
regions by their geography locations. The foreign trade income
which divided by different geography locations is shown as follows:

Foreign trade income

2012 2011
Domestic 1,461,490,442 1,133,243,479
International 160,599,216 95,172,504
Total 1,622,089,658 1,228,415,983
The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.
(3) FEBEZRAER (3) Major customers information
1.5 2011 Interest income of the Bank amounting to RMB 150 million come
0.66 17% 2011 :11%) from top 10 largest loan customers (2011: RMB 66 million), which

contributed 17 per cent of the total interest income for the year
(2011: 11 per cent).
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t. RiERIERHE
1. BHEIE

(7) Commitments and contingent liabilities

1. Commitments

BT Y R&iE Capital commitments
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Contracted but not provided for 1,640,000,000 -
Total 1,640,000,000 -
ZEHEERE Operating lease commitments
The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease
arrangements. The total future minimum payments in respect
of non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date
are as follows:
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
( ) Within 1 year 65,775,488 64,228,554
( ) 110 2 years 25,390,161 50,080,578
( ) 2 to 3 years 19,569,700 15,331,550
After 3 years 10,678,052 12,464,656
Total 121,413,401 142,105,338
2. WK 2. Credit commitments
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
W EBRER: Financial guarantee contracts:
Bank acceptance 137,742,573 129,238,060
Letter of guarantee 90,208,877 35,044,304
Standby letter of credit 1,131,913,351 1,304,318,025
Letters of credit issued 2,349,762,969 1,242,975,174
Sub-total 3,709,627,770 2,711,575,563
AT HISE B B R A Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:

1

1

BB ARIERIE ST XU AL & 51 -

Less than one year
More than one year
Total

Sub-total

Weighted credit risk of credit commitments:

11,627,303
228,697,615
240,324,918

3,949,952,688

387,510,690

40,127,869
40,127,869
2,751,703,432

147,732,140

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee, require
the Bank to be obliged to fulfill the customers’ responsibility as
guarantor in case that the customers fail to repay the contracted
amount or fail to fulfill their obligations.
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Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the Bank
to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the future.
Loan commitments are normally attached with an effective date or
termination clause, and it is possible that the Bank may not need
to fulfill such commitment on the maturity date. Hence, the amount
of the loan commitments does not necessarily represent the future
expected cash outflow.

3. ZRELF 3. Entrusted business
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Entrusted deposits 440,625,898 101,884,362
Entrusted loans 440,625,898 101,884,362

Entrusted fund 113,797,494

Entrusted asset 113,797,494
Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the

depositors.

Entrusted wealthy management business is the investment product
which according to the agreed investing plan with the clients. The
4. S FHE investment principal is paid by the customers, which would be

2012 2

N, BEEH

2007 7
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managed by the Bank.The Bank would receive the investment profit
on behalf of the customers and pay the profit to the customers
based on the agreed conditions.

4. Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, according to the management there was
no other contingent liabilities except those that have been disclosed
in Note 7, 2.

(8) Capital management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method to
mitigate the inherent risk in the business operation and complied
with the requirements of regulatory authorities on capital
management. The Bank also targets to maintain sufficient capital
adequacy ratio for operations and optimising shareholders’
value. The Bank may adjust its capital structure actively to
adapt with the change of economic environment and related risk
characteristics.

Core capital includes paid-up capital, capital reserves, surplus
reserves, general reserves and retained earnings. Supplementary
capital includes general loan provision and others.

The capital adequacy ratio calculated by the Bank in accordance
with the “Regulations Governing Disclosure Information of
Commercial Bank” (CBRC [2007] No.7 ) promulgated by CBRC is
as follows:



31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Core capital 3,770,556,864 3,5660,817,753
Supplementary capital 215,410,922 186,244,398

Net capital base

Risk weighted assets and market risk adjustment

Core capital adequacy ratio

Capital adequacy ratio

3,985,967,786
16,935,305,872
22.26%

23.54%

3,747,062,151
14,697,873,152
24.23%

25.49%

K. MBS

1. EARE
1.1 AR EE

1.2 AEREFERY) R E M5 A B R & XE R X E O

(9) Financial instruments risk management

1. Credit risk

1.1 Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly arises from loans
and advances to customers. Credit risk of off balance sheet items
mainly arises from the letters of credit/guarantees issued as well as
loan commitments.

Credit risk centralisation refers to the situation whereby there is
a concentration of customers in the same business activities,
geographical location, or industry sector with similar economic
characteristics such that their repayment ability would be affected
by the same economic fluctuations. Credit risk concentration
reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to such customer
concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures which effectively mitigate and control credit risk.
The procedures cover credit evaluation, credit approval, credit
monitoring as well as reporting. The Bank reviews the borrowers’
business operations periodically, analyses the quality of credit
portfolio and ensures adequacy of loan loss provisions.

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments is similar
with that from loans and advances to customers. Hence, the Bank
adopts the same policies and procedures for managing credit
contingencies which cover application, follow-up monitoring and
collateral requirements, etc.

1.2 Maximum credit risk exposure without consideration of
any collateral and credit risk mitigation

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure of
the Bank without taking into consideration of collateral and credit
risk mitigation is set out below:
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31-12-2012

31-12-2011

Balances with central banks
Due from banks

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions

Reverse repurchase financial assets
Derivative financial assets
Loans and advances to customers

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Available-for-sale financial assets
Other assets

Total

Credit commitments (Note7.2)

Maximum credit risk exposure

4,854,586,565

5,915,321,787

3,458,240,679

380,562,194

14,916,638,219

633,769,055

3,499,934,488
219,821,659
33,878,874,646
3,949,952,688

37,828,827,334

4,476,849,456

5,334,996,852

3,453,454,659

476,400,000
268,391,844

13,422,820,499

1,002,657,140

6,313,879,613
299,822,962
35,049,273,025
2,751,703,432

37,800,976,457

1.3 X EHE

1.4 2R

108

RERT (HE ) FRAF

1.3 Risk concentration

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar economic
characteristics would tend to pose higher credit risk to the Bank.
On the other hand, the level of credit risk may be varied from each
industry or geographical location in view of their unique economic
development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/guarantees to
domestic customers. Analysis on industry sector concentration for
the Bank’s loans and advances can be found at Note 5, 7.

1.4 Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would depend on
the credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties as assessed by the
Bank. The Bank has established a guideline on taking collateral
including the frequency of collateral valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

e For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken
include properties, cash deposits, bank guarantee and
machinery; and

e For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly
residential properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor the
market value of the collateral and follow up with the borrowers/
counterparties to top up collateral in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the loan agreement. The change in market value of the
collateral would also be taken into consideration when reviewing
the adequacy of loan loss provisions.



1.5 5B

]

1.5 Credit quality
The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank (excluding loan

provisions) is analysed as follows:

31-12-2012 BEREIHA 2EHE 2R{E &it
RIRIE RRE
Neither overdue nor Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
Due from banks 5,915,719,885 - - 5,915,719,885
E:]i?]i?;ﬂ:;mi&:gnkg and other 3,4568,240,679 - - 3,458,240,679
Interest receivables 178,642,756 - - 178,642,756
Loans and advances to customers 15,107,226,510 1,192,918 107,882,468 15,216,301,896
glrr;i?%ralljsssets at fair value through 633,760,055 i ] 633,769,055
Available-for-sale financial assets 3,499,934,488 - - 3,499,934,488
Total 28,793,633,373 1,192,918 107,882,468 28,902,608,759
31-12-2011 BEREIHA 2EHAE 2R{E Ait
RIRIE RRE
Neither overdue nor Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
Due from banks 5,335,976,454 - - 5,335,976,454
E:]i%i?;ﬂ:;mg;::nks and other 3,453,454,659 - - 3,458,454,659
Interest receivables 266,221,686 - - 266,221,686
Loans and advances to customers 13,505,431,456 103,575,931 88,368,730 13,697,376,117
girr;?i?%iralloa:;ets at fair value through 1.002,657.140 i ] 1,002,657,140
Available-for-sale financial assets 6,313,879,613 - - 6,313,879,613
Reverse repurchase financial assets 476,400,000 - - 476,400,000
Total 30,354,021,008 108,575,931 88,368,730 30,545,965,669
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Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor impaired
The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor impaired by
collateral arrangement as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2012

E®

Pass

*iE

Special mention

&it

Total

Unsecured loans

Loans secured by guarantees

1,704,367,276

3,687,701,781

1,704,367,276

3,687,701,781

Loans secured by mortgage 6,795,624,354 101,078,028 6,896,702,382

Loans secured by pledges 2,818,455,071 - 2,818,455,071

Total 15,006,148,482 101,078,028 15,107,226,510
31-12-2011

E® xiE &it

Pass Special mention Total

Unsecured loans

Loans secured by guarantees
Loans secured by mortgage
Loans secured by pledges

Total

1,317,959,621
3,602,367,464
6,951,468,261
1,663,464,467

13,435,259,813

63,421,643
6,750,000

70,171,643

1,317,959,621
3,602,367,464
7,014,889,904
1,670,214,467

13,506,431,456

EEBERBENR MR RER

Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired
Ageing analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as at the
balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2012
11A 141A 24H 31 A &it FBEERYARNE
LA B24H 2 34A WE
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 Total Fair value of collaterals
months
Loans and advances to 864,336 203,099 125,483 - 1,192,918 271,383,250
customers
31-12-2011
14A 11A 214A 31 A Ait FFBERRYARNE
A 224 H 2341 A WE
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 Total Fair value of collaterals
months
Loans and advances to 103,575,931 - - - 108,575,931 1,785,243,910

customers
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ERER & TR B

Impaired loans and advances

Where there are objective evidences that a single or multiple
negative events have occurred after the initial recognition of the
loans and the impact from the events on the expected future
cash flows can be estimated reliably, the relevant loans should
be recognised as impaired loans. These loans are classified as
“Substandard”, “Doubtful” or “Loss”.

As at the balance sheet date, the fair value of collateral of impaired
loans held by the Bank is as follows:

31-12-2012 31-12-2011

The collateral value of impaired loan

648,860,599 362,673,300

ZKEANR TR R

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined from
the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment made after
considering the Bank’s own experience in collateral disposal as well
as the current market conditions.

Restructured loans and advances

The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies to
renegotiate the contractual terms with customers in order to
maximise the recovery of impaired loans as well as to manage
customer relationships.

The carrying amount of restructured loans and advances is
as follows:

31-12-2012 31-12-2011

Restructured loans andadvances
- Impaired

5,221,531
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2. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank is unable to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Liquidity risk
arises from the general funding of the Bank’s banking activities and
in the management of its assets and liabilities including off-balance
sheet items.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of policies,
controls and limits approved by the Asset Liability Committee and
Executive Committee. The Asset Liability Committee formulates
key strategies on liquidity risk management and reviews the Bank’s
asset liability structure and liquidity risk profile on a monthly basis.
Day-to-day management of the Bank’s liquidity is undertaken by
Global Markets and Investment Management Division while Market
and Balance Sheet Risk Management Department independently
monitors and reports liquidity risk exposures against control limits
to the Asset Liability Committee/Risk Management Committee.

The Bank’s liquidity risk management covers the whole process
of strategy development and planning, risk assessment and
measurement, monitoring and review as well as contingency
planning. The Bank measures and manages liquidity risk mainly by
analysing contractual cash flows of maturing assets and liabilities.
The Bank also employs liquidity early warning indicators, including
indicators imposed by regulators, and control limits to monitor
liquidity risk on a daily basis. Liquidity early warning indicators are
further classified to signal different level of contingency situations for
appropriate actions.
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3. iR 3. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse change in market
value of the Bank’s trading portfolio during the holding period. The
Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from foreign exchange rate
and interest rate related products arising from trading as well as
non-trading businesses. The objective of market risk management
is to minimise the negative impact of volatility of financial
instruments on the Bank’s earnings and equity.

/ The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank’s market risk
exposure and formulates market risk policies for approval by the
Asset Liability Committee and the Executive Committee. Risk profile
reports are submitted to the Asset Liability Committee and Risk
Management Committee on a regular basis.

3.1 iCEXE The Bank measures and manages its market risk in accordance
with a framework of policies and practices which include sensitivity
analysis, Value-at-Risk measure, stress testing etc. In addition, the
market risk associated with any new product/business is required

2012 12 31 to be identified and addressed prior to launch.

3.1 Currency risk

The Bank’s currency risk arises mainly from currency mismatches
of assets and liabilities as well as foreign exchange trading
business whereby the open positions are subject to exchange rate
fluctuations.

As at 31 December 2012, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:
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31-12-2012

£ AR Hit Ait

USD(RMB RMB Other (RMB Total (RMB

equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)

BrE. Assets:

Cash and balances with the central bank 85,461,844 4,781,011,448 2,447,661 4,868,920,953

?#;ng;ﬂniqsuzfﬁsmem with banks and other 1446193741  7,850,625,623 76743102 9,373,562,466

Derivative financial assets 144,610,924 235,951,270 - 380,562,194

Loans and advances to customers 2,819,944,641 11,509,310,223 587,383,355 14,916,638,219

Ii:z:ncial assets at fair value through profit or ) 633,769,055 ) 633,769,055

Available-for-sale financial assets - 3,499,934,488 - 3,499,934,488

Reverse repurchase financial assets - - - -

Other assets 26,140,371 880,357,787 3,376,723 909,874,881

Total assets 4,522,351,521 29,390,959,894 669,950,841 34,583,262,256

il Liabilities:

?r:‘aen:a??ndstﬁ’t'jtoislem from banks and other 5,086,816,075 316,212,388 515088,856  5,918,117,319

Derivative financial liabilities 162,936,710 247,688,794 - 410,625,504

Customer deposits 868,760,686 22,409,108,028 666,821,715 23,944,690,429

Other liabilities 18,036,876 495,186,910 20,189,975 533,418,761

Total liabilities 6,136,550,347 23,468,196,120 1,202,100,546 30,806,847,013

Net position (1,614,198,826) 5,922,763,774 (532,149,705) 3,776,415,243

m:;irar:;:goums of derivative financial 70,427,043,771  43,172,505425  1,760,107,139  117,360,556,335

Commitments 996,835,528 2,734,022,467 219,094,693 3,949,952,688
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31-12-2011

EJH AR Hith &it
USD(RMB RMB Other (RMB Total (RMB
equivalent) equivalent) equivalent)
BrE. Assets:
Cash and balances with the central bank 56,460,676 4,426,749,186 1,896,216 4,485,106,078
?;:nzgﬁniqsuﬂfs:mem with banks and other 1,642,040,551 7,094,892,591 51518369  8,788,451,511
Derivative financial assets 32,471,409 235,920,435 - 268,391,844
Loans and advances to customers 3,782,667,623 9,091,716,282 548,436,594 13,422,820,499
Ezzncial assets at fair value through profit or ) 1,002,657,140 ) 1,002,657,140
Available-for-sale financial assets 188,876,724 6,125,002,889 - 6,313,879,613
Reverse repurchase financial assets - 476,400,000 - 476,400,000
Other assets 8,644,447 476,089,595 26,928,039 511,662,081
Total assets 5,711,161,430 28,929,428,118 628,779,218 35,269,368,766
ffR Liabilities:
?#:nl?a??nitﬁ'jgsge”t from banks and other 5998398373 3,169,359,009 719,687,739 9,887,445,121
Derivative financial liabilities 49,792,649 290,049,169 - 339,841,818
Customer deposits 607,406,395 19,623,829,909 874,670,690 21,105,906,994
Other liabilities 6,534,644 354,010,005 17,924,478 378,469,127
Total liabilities 6,662,132,061 23,437,248,092 1,612,282,907 31,711,663,060
Net position (950,970,631) 5,492,180,026 (983,5083,689) 3,657,705,706
Notional amounts of derivative financial 17,212,188,364  290,328,738,080  2,592,730,587  49,133,656,990
instruments
Commitments 1,343,628,382 1,286,561,011 121,514,039 2,751,703,432
Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a change in
foreign exchange rates on the ‘Profit Before Tax’ and ‘Equity’ of the
Bank is as follows:
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
Xt B i 0 X B RTF E 00
TETH Change in foreign exchange rate Impact on profit Impact on profit

1%

1%

-1% change against RMB

+1% change against RMB

21,463,485

(21,4683,485)

19,344,744

(19,344,744)

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that assets
and liabilities have static currency risk structure. It shows the impact
of a change in other currency rates against RMB on the Bank’s ‘Profit
Before Tax’ and ‘Equity’, given other variables remain constant.
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The analysis is based on below assumptions:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses caused
by the 1per cent change of the closing rate (mid rate) of the
different foreign currencies against RMB as at the balance
sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against RMB
in the same direction simultaneously;

(8) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of exchange rate
fluctuation on the Bank’s earnings may differ from above sensitivity
analysis.

3.2 Interest rate risk

The Bank’s interest rate risk arises mainly from maturity mismatches
(for fixed rate) or re-pricing mismatches (for floating rate) of the
Bank’s assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet items.

The Risk Management Division monitors interest rate risk exposure,
formulates related policies and procedures and provides regular
report on interest rate risk profile to the Asset Liability Committee
and Risk Management Committee.

The Bank adheres to PBOC regulations strictly in pricing its
loans and deposits. Interest rate risk exposure is quantified
and analysed mainly using gap analysis tools such as re-
pricing schedules.

As at 31 December 2012, the Bank’s assets liabilities re-pricing
profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and repricing date) is
in the following page:



31-12-2012

3MNAR KEOERE:3 16358 5FEME TitE &it
Within 3 3 months to 1to 5years  Non-interest Total
months 1 year 5 years above bearing
&= Assets:
Cash and balances with the 4,772,456,859 - - - 96,464,094 4,868,920,953
central bank
Due from and placement
with banks and other 7,482,845,150 1,890,717,316 - - - 9,373,562,466
financial institutions
Derivative financial assets - - - - 380,562,194 380,562,194
Loans and advances 1o 13,028,233,591 1,888,404,628 - - - 14916638219
customers
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 633,769,055 - - - - 633,769,055
Available-for-sale financial
982,784,088 1,508,344,650 1,008,805,750 - - 3,499,934,488
assets
Reverse repurchase . ) . ) . i
financial assets
Other assets - - - - 909,874,881 909,874,881
Total assets 26,900,088,743 5,287,466,594 1,008,805,750 - 1,386,901,169 34,583,262,256
fufk: Liabilities:
Due to and placement from
banks and other financial 5,918,117,319 - - - - 5,918,117,319
institutions
Derivatives financial - - - - 410,625,504 410,625,504
liabilities
Customer deposits 12,823,882,823 7,232,435,154 3,788,372,452 100,000,000 - 23,944,690,429
Other liabilities - - - - 533,413,761 533,413,761
Total liabilities 18,742,000,142 7,232,435,154 3,788,372,452 100,000,000 944,039,265 30,806,847,013
Net position 8,158,088,601 (1,944,968,560) (2,779,566,702)  (100,000,000) 442,861,904 3,776,415,243
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31-12-2011

3NMAR KRERE:3 155 5F 5N L iR &it
Within 3 3 months to 1to 5 years Non-interest Total
months 1 year 5 years above bearing
"= Assets:
Cash and balances with the 5, g 435 - - - 64,211,646 4,485,106,078
central bank
Due from and placement
with banks and other 5,285,161,568 3,5602,609,129 - - 680,814 8,788,451,611
financial institutions
Derivative financial assets - - - - 268,391,844 268,391,844
Loans and advances o 11,527,714,268 1,896,098,121 8,110 - - 13,422,820,499
customers
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,002,657,140 - - - - 1,002,657,140
Avallable-for-sale financial 1,814,805,771 1,292,990,512 3,206,083,330 . - 6313879613
assets
Reverse repurchase 476,400,000 - - - - 476,400,000
financial assets
Other assets - - - - 511,662,081 511,662,081
Total assets 24,527,633,179 6,690,697,762 3,206,091,440 - 844,946,385 35,269,368,766
itk Liabilities:
Due to and placement from
banks and other financial 7,486,368,196 2,401,076,925 - - - 9,887,445,121
institutions
Derivatives financia - . . - 330841818 339,841,818
liabilities
Customer deposits 11,955,839,039 4,269,596,724 4,880,471,231 - - 21,105,906,994
Other liabilities - - - - 378,469,127 378,469,127
Total liabilities 19,442,207,235 6,670,673,649 4,880,471,231 - 718,310,945 31,711,663,060
Net position 5,085,425,944 20,024,113 (1,674,379,791) - 126,635,440 3,657,705,706
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The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities based on
maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date for floating rate
items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s ‘Profit Before Tax’ and ‘Equity’ is as
follows:

31-12-2012
BRI E B0 A 2R BI R0
TR Change in interest rate Impact on profit Impact on equity
100 + 100 basis points 64,089,643 (29,498,539)
100 - 100 basis points (64,089,643) 29,498,539
31-12-2011
F LRI E ARG PopyEnd:sbA|
FETT Change in interest rate Impact on profit Impact on equity
100 + 100 basis points 44,572,567 (102,626,842)
100 - 100 basis points (44,572,567) 102,626,842
The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk structure. It
reflects the impact of interest rate movement on the Bank’s net
interest income over a one-year period. The key assumptions are
1 as follows:
2 (1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than three
3 months or between three months and one year are assumed to
4 be re-priced in the middle of the respective time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts parallelly with interest rate change;
(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes; and
(4) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net interest
income from interest rate movement may differ from above
sensitivity analysis.

The impact on equity is estimated from the change in market value

of ‘available-for-sale’ portfolio caused by a parallel shift of yield
curve arising from interest rate change.
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4. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the value for which an asset could be exchanged, or a
liability could be settled, between willing parties with full knowledge
and on arm’s length basis. Subject to the existence of an active
market, such as an authorised securities exchange, the market
value is the best reflection of the fair value of financial instruments.
As there is no available market value for some of the financial assets
and liabilities held and issued by the Bank, the discounted cash flow
method or other valuation methods described below are adopted to
determine the fair value of these assets and liabilities. However, the
value determined by such methods would depend on the amount of
future cash flows, time period assumption and discount rates used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating
fair values:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including

derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair value by reference

to the quoted market prices when available. If quoted market
prices are not available, the fair value is estimated using
discounted cash flows or quoted price from the counter parties.

The carrying amounts of these items reflect the fair value as at

the balance sheet date;

The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities maturing

within 12 months are assumed to be equal to their carrying

amounts in view of their short maturity;

(i) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate at
the time the loans are extended shall be determined using
prevailing market rates of similar loans. Changes in the credit
quality of loans within the portfolio are not taken into account
in determining the fair values as the impact of credit risk is
recognised separately as impairment provision which shall be
deducted from the carrying amounts and fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or floating rate
depending on the product type. The fair value of demand deposits
and saving deposits without specific maturity date is determined
based on the amount payable on demand. The fair value of fixed
deposits are estimated using discounted cash flows method with
the prevailing deposit rate for the remaining tenor of the fixed
deposit as the discount rate.

(ii

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

() Mark to Market-where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i) Market to Model-where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value
process that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure
correct fair value representation. In making appropriate
valuation adjustments, the Bank follows the methodologies
that consider factors such as bid-offer spread valuation
adjustment and model valuation adjustment.



The Bank has established internal control procedures over the
valuation process to provide assurance over the appropriateness
of the fair values applied. If fair value is determined by valuation
models, the assumptions and techniques within the models are
independently validated by a specialist group. In addition, price
and parameter inputs, assumptions and valuation adjustments are
subject to verification and review processes. Other valuation control
includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to the
following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the price
represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. Financial instruments included in this class are
bonds with the Marked-to-market prices actively made available
and announced by China Central Depository and Clearing Co. Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments where
the prices are derived from standard valuation models, and inputs
to these models are directly observable. The valuation techniques
include the use of discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models and other valuation techniques widely used and accepted
by market participants. The financial instruments included in
this category are mainly Foreign Exchange Forward and Foreign
Exchange Swaps, Noble Metals Forward and Swaps, and OTC
derivatives (namely money market deposit and placement, interest
rate swap, FX Option, Rediscountd bills) and financial instruments
with fair value derived from counterparty (for structured products
arranged on back-to-back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable inputs
This valuation technique is used where at least one significant input
is not observable and reliance is placed on reasonable assumptions
made on market conditions. There is currently no financial
instrument being classified under such category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide a
consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the Bank’s
assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may use different
assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair values disclosed by
different financial institutions may not be entirely comparable.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount of the financial assets and financial

liabilities is not material as at the balance sheet date.

The following table shows the valuation techniques for evaluating
fair value of financial instruments.
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31-12-2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value 536,547,090 97,221,965 - 633,769,055
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets 3,425,450,310 74,484,178 - 3,499,934,488
Derivative financial assets - 380,562,194 - 380,562,194
Total financial assets 3,961,997,400 552,268,337 - 4,514,265,737
Derivative financial liabilities - 410,625,504 - 410,625,504
Total financial liabilities - 410,625,504 - 410,625,504

F—E -t =) £=E &it

31-12-2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial asslets at fair value 1,002,657,140 i ) 1.002,657,140
through profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets 6,313,879,613 - - 6,313,879,613
Derivative financial assets - 268,391,844 - 268,391,844
Total financial assets 7,316,536,753 268,391,844 - 7,584,928,597
Derivative financial liabilities - 339,841,818 - 339,841,818
Total financial liabilities - 339,841,818 - 339,841,818

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1 and
level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities
which were recorded at fair value.
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1. REBHHIAERE

(10) Related party transactions

1. Criteria of identifying related parties
Details of the Bank’s major related parties in 2012 are as
follows:

(1) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;

(2) Key management personnel of the Bank or the close family
members;

(8) Enterprises under control, jointly control or significant influence
of the key management personnel of the Bank or the close
family members.

2. Parent company of the Bank

B A St R A R HAEN LB

Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Shareholding
4,440 100%

United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and financial service Singapore SGD 4,440 Million 100%

3. FAFEASFRARANRTXBEX AN M XIS

3. The related parties which the Bank had
transactions during the period are as follows

BEasYNSEEL: VA

Company under the common control of parent company

B W SR

Name Business nature

EERRA

Legal representative

EA EMEE

Registered address Registered capital

20
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd  Banking and financial service Kuala Lumpur Malaysia RM 2 Billion Wee Cho Yaw
FHAREAHMHAF
Company under the significant influence of the parent company
B A S5 14 B E A EMEAR EEREA
Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative

Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited Banking and financial service

16.9

Yantai China RMB 1.69 Billion Jiang Xi Yun
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Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s director and key management

& NIE-2: 953 AR AR A REREA
Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative
2,500
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD 25 Million Liam Wee Sin
7.8
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,L.td  Real estate development Tianjin China RMB 780 Million Liam Wee Sin
1,555

UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)

Consulting and investment

Shanghai China

USD 15.55 Million

Seah Kian Wee

Co., Ltd management
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 650 Philip Cheong
Shin Keat
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. Holding company New York USA USD 6.5 Million Philip Cheong
Shin Keat
650
Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Consulting and investment Shanghai China USD 6.5 Million Wee Ee Chao
Management Co., Ltd management
3,021
UBI Logistics (China) Limited International freight Dalian China RMB 30.21 Million Zhao Xi Wang

forwarder
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Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s director and key management

AR A R TR R EERERA
Name Business nature Registered address Registered capital Legal representative
100
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of Xiamen China USD 1 Million Goh Bee Leong
Chinese pharmaceutical
products
500
Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium Owning and operating Chengdu China USD 5 Million Chng Hwee Hong
Amusement Park Limited oceanariums entertainment
and related services
720
Haw Par Healthcare (Xiamen) Co.,L.td  Prepare manufactory and Xiamen China USD 7.2 Million Goh Bee Leong
process of Tiger Baim
products, rub, pain patch
and the like
Haw Par Corporation Limited 242,172,298

Haw Par Corporation Limited

Investment Holding

Singapore

SGD 242,172,298

Wee Cho Yaw
(Chairman)

Kheng Leong Guangdong Investment
and Management Co., Ltd

Real estate consulting;
Investment advice (Securities
and futures investment

consulting excluded)

Guangzhou China

900

RMB 9 Million

Wee Ee Chao

Singland (Chengdu) Development
Co.Ltd

Real estate industry

Chengdu China

2400

USD 24 Million

Magdalene Yong
Nyuk Yann

Uol Business Consulting (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Business information
consulting; Corporate
management consulting;

Investment advice;

Construction plan advice

Shanghai China

USD 80 Thousand

Liam Wee Sin
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4. PR SEXBFZEERS 4. Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
RE HEERS B0 aEELS
REALLH) RELLB)
R GEEmER Loans and advances to customers Balance (%) Balance (%)
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited - - 25,203,600 0.18
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 299,850,021 1.97 243,118,229 1.77
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.Ltd 13,372,697 0.09 - -
UBI Logistics (China) Limited - - 8,748,000 0.06
Total 313,222,718 2.06 277,069,829 2.01
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
RE HREXZ S RE HREI%EZS
REALLB RELLH]
R Due from banks Balance (%) Balance (%)
United Overseas Bank Limited 31,930,740 0.34 26,673,771 0.30
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd 1,375,770 0.01 680,814 0.01
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 580,000,000 6.19 127,938,068 1.46
Total 613,306,510 6.54 165,292,663 1.77
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
RE HEEZS ®H  AREXS
REALLH) RELLB]
FARFEANTIR Due to banks Balance (%) Balance (%)
United Overseas Bank Limited 5,766,003,780 97.43 9,293,062,843 93.99
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 2,105,711 0.04 2,096,279 0.02
Total 5,768,109,491 97.47 9,295,169,122 94.01
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
FH aEEZS 8 AREXS
REALLH] RELLB
R TERR Customer deposits Balance (%) Balance (%)
( ) UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 85,450,978 0.36 58,995,306 0.28
( ) Uol Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 561,790 - - -
( ) Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.Ltd 23,043,752 0.10 - -
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd 1,225,713 0.01 1,012,338 -
(G Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 8,064,494 0.04 4,200,479 0.02
( ) Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd 17,737,357 0.07 12,034,829 0.06
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 90,566,536 0.38 786,758 -
UBI Logistics (China) Limited 346,235 - 342,658 -
Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium Amusement Park Limited 2,989 - 4,563 -
Haw Par Corporation Limited Haw Par Corporation Limited 109,771,250 0.46 103,979,469 0.49
Kheng Leong (Guangzhou) Real Estate Consulting Co.,Ltd 3,362,277 0.01 408,359 -
Total 340,133,371 1.43 181,759,759 0.85
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31-12-2012 31-12-2011
RE HREXZS KB AREXS
R 8 Receivables-interest receivables Balance %ﬁtgzg Balance ?ﬁ%ﬂ t%"zli
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 4,379,259 2.45 4,810,715 1.81

( ) Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.Ltd 80,292 0.04

Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 2,139,861 1.20 1,005,252 0.38
) Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 13,659 0.01
UBI Logistics (China) Limited - 3,826 -
Total 6,599,412 3.69 5,833,452 2.20

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
RE HEERZS 8 AREXS
MFFIE Payables-interest payables Balance ﬁﬁtt‘% Balance ﬁ%ﬁtl(:%
United Overseas Bank Limited 13,235,481 3.51 65,348,630 26.55
UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 100,805 0.03 139,792 0.06
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 1562 145 -
Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd 32,063 0.01 62,954 0.03
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 3,272 1,998 -
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 315 408 -
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 12,120 243 -
UBI Logistics (China) Limited 2,343 2,743 -
Uol Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 100 - -
Haw Par Corporation Limited Haw Par Corporation Limited 151,632 0.04 2,728 -
Total 13,538,183 3.59 65,559,641 26.64

31-12-2012 31-12-2011
RE HRI%RS RER HREEZS
R W sk 0 - H it B i sk Receivables- other receivables Balance ﬁﬁu(izl; Balance #\gﬂtl(:f,[;
United Overseas Bank Limited 479,731 0.10 1,500,739 4.47

31-12-2012 31-12-2011

RE aEELS B HREEXS
REALLH] RELLB)
R A 3RO - Bt B 4 3R Payables-other payables Balance (%) Balance (%)
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd 198,708 0.28 -
United Overseas Bank Limited 17,397,813 24.54 3,026,756 7.30
Total 17,596,521 24.82 3,026,756 7.30
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2012 2011
0] HEEZS ] aEELS
FIBBN Interest income Amount  £FiLLAI (%) Amount  &Fitb B (%)
UBI Logistics (China) Limited 461,265 0.03 817,832 0.08
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 20,933,253 1.53 3,897,480 0.37
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 86,003 0.01 1,715,155 0.16
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 1,034,847 0.08 -
United Overseas Bank Limited 3,910 92,150 0.01
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.Ltd 122,490 0.01 -
Total 22,641,768 1.66 6,522,617 0.62
2012 2011
£#; HRE%EXZS 0] aEEZS
FETH Interest expense Amount  £FiLLHI (%) Amount &tk (%)
United Overseas Bank Limited 78,181,951 10.54 102,704,643 17.56
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. - 2,381,387 0.41
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.Ltd 69,344 0.01 -
UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 2,242,634 0.30 1,194,000 0.20
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 50,494 0.01 22,490 -
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 5,905 - 79,560 0.01
Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd 303,808 0.04 74,293 0.01
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 56,516 0.01 52,556 0.01
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 9,360 - 10,020 -
Uol Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 508 - - -
UBI Logistics (China) Limited 10,724 - 6,913 -
Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium Amusement Park Limited 17 - 3,309 -
Haw Par Corporation Limited Haw Par Corporation Limited 409,031 0.06 264,914 0.05
Kheng Leong (Guangzhou) Real Estate Consulting Co.,Ltd 1,016 - 203 -
Total 81,341,308 10.97 106,794,288 18.25
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2012

2011

S8} HEXZS

& HEXXH

FEBERAEWAN Fee and commission income Amount ék%ﬁtl(:ozg Amount ?ﬁ%ﬁtl(:;i‘i

United Overseas Bank Limited 3,862,493 5.80 - -

Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd 1,400,000 210 506,870 1.18

( ) Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.Ltd 150,000 0.23 - -

UBI Logistics (China) Limited 10,000 0.02 13,085 0.03

Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium Amusement Park Limited 6,640 0.01 13,223 0.03

Kheng Leong Guangdong Investment and Management Co., Ltd - - 251 -

( ) Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Management Co., Ltd - - 490 -

( ) Haw Par Healthcare (Xiamen) Co.,Ltd - - 6,300 0.01

Kheng Leong (Guangzhou) Real Estate Consulting Co.,Ltd 760 - 355 -

Total 5,429,893 8.16 540,574 1.25

2012 2011

%11 HREEZS %01 HREEZS

WHEREEE General and administrative expense Amount ék%ﬁl:l(:;zli Amount #\gﬂtl(:f,[;
BEEREARLZHE IT support

-United Overseas Bank Limited 20,499,246 4.08 19,122,578 4.24
BFEEEE Rental fee

-United Overseas Bank Limited 651,029 0.13 515,376 0.11

-Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 198,641 0.04 198,641 0.04

Total 21,348,916 4.25 19,836,595 4.39

2012 2011

01 HEEZS W HREXS

FF R Software development Amount ﬁﬁtl(sozli Amount = H(:*f,[;

United Overseas Bank Limited 7,702,026 34.00 9,817,647 53.00
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31-12-2012 31-12-2011

ERAE HEEZS EREE GHEEXS
Entrusted S ELL B (%) Entrusted £&&ittHl (%)

ZHRLE Fiduciary activities deposits deposits
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 11,040,000 2.51 11,040,000 10.84
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
I S EESE] ERER LHREXS
Entrusted EFEEH] (%) Entrusted & &Lk 51 (%)

loan loan

Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium

Amusement Park Limited 11,040,000 2.51 11,040,000 10.84
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
REL HEEZS RE HEEZS
AR SRR Irrevocable loan commitment Balance LEALLB] (%) Balance £#LLHI (%)
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co.Ltd 11,627,303 4.84 - -
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. - - 6,881,771 17.15
11,627,303 4.84 6,881,771 17.15
31-12-2012 31-12-2011
RER hEEZS R HEEXS
fTEEMIASY Derivatives Balance REULLH] (%) Balance &tk (%)
United Overseas Bank Limited 30,459,930,200 2595  6,224,155,327 12.67

Transactions between the Bank and related parties mentioned
above are carried out in normal course of business and commercial
terms and market price.

Transactions between the Bank and key management personnel
are as follows:

Key management personnel include directors, supervisors and
senior management.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as follows:

2012 2011

Employee salaries and other short-term benefits 37,148,582 35,689,427
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(11) Post balance sheet events
As at the date on which the financial statements are approved,

there is no material post balance sheet event that needs to be
disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

(12) Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

(13) Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 21 March 2013.
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